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VISION STATEMENT

We D. M. Textile Mills Ltd. aim at seeing our mills to be a good manufacturing unit producing high 
quality yarn by complying with the requirements of Quality Management System and 
continuously improving its effectiveness for total customers' satisfaction. We wish to play an 
honourable role in the spinning sector by keeping a substantial presence in the export and local 
markets.

MISSION STATEMENT

1 To install state of the art machinery and to acquire sophisticated process technology to 
achieve maximum growth in a competitive standard quality environment.

2 To make strenuous efforts to enhance profitability of the company ensuring a fair return to 
the investors, shareholders and employees of the company.

3 To exercise maximum care for improvement of standard of quality of our products by 
employing a team of highly skilled technicians and professional managers.

4 To strive hard to explore / develop new markets for the sale of our products in export and 
local markets.

5 To improve customers' satisfaction level by adhering strictly to standard quality 
requirement of our customers in local and export markets and by improving 
communications with customers for receiving prompt feed back about quality standard of 
our products.

6 To attend for the prompt resolution of customers' complaints by taking timely corrective 
measures to redress the quality complaints.

7 To improve logistic facilities for our customers dispatch programme and issue all 
shipments / delivery documents well in time.

8 To make comprehensive arrangements for the training of our workers / technicians.

9 To improve team work, sense of transparency, creativity in our professionals and technical 
personnel.

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

Rawalpindi Dated:  October 05, 2019
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STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES

D M Textile Mills Limited has laid down the following Ethics and Business Practices , the 
observance of which is compulsory for all the directors and staff members of the 
company in the conduct of company's in order to protect and safeguard the reputation 
and integrity of the company at all levels of its operations.  Any contravention of these 
Ethics and Business Practices is regarded as misconduct. The company will ensure that 
all the executives and subordinate staff members are fully aware of these standards and 
principles.

1. Conflict of interest
All staff members are expected not to engage in any activity which can cause conflict 
between their personal interests and company's interests, such as:

     a) In effecting the purchases for the company and selling its products the directors and the 
staff members are forbidden from holding any personal interest in any organization 
supplying goods or services to the company or buying its products.

     b) The staff members should not engage in any outside business while serving the 
company.

     c) Staff members are not permitted to conduct personal business in company's premises 
or use company's facilities for the same.

     d) If a staff member has direct or indirect relationship with an outside organization dealing 
with the company he must disclose the same to the management.

2. Confidentiality
All staff members are required not to divulge any secrets / information's of the company 
to any outsider even after leaving the service of the company unless it is so required by a 
court of law. During the course of service in the company they should not disseminate 
any information relating to business secrets of the company without the consent of 
management.

3. Kickbacks
All staff members are strictly  forbidden not to accept any favour, gifts or kick backs from 
any organization dealing with the company. In case if such a favour is considered, in the 
interest of the company, the same should be disclosed clearly to the management.

4. Proper Books of Accounts
All funds, receipts and disbursements should be properly recorded in the books of 
accounts of the company. No false or fictitious entries should be made or misleading 
statements pertaining to the company or its operations should be issued. All agreements 
with agents, dealers and consultants should be made in writing supported with required 
evidence.

5. Relationship with Government officials, suppliers, buyers and agents etc.
The dealings of the company with Government officials, suppliers, buyers, agents and 
consultants of the company should always be such that the integrity of the company and 
reputation is not damaged. Members having queries in connection with how to deal with 
these requirements should consult with the management.
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6. Health and Safety
Every staff member is required to take care of his health and safety and of those working 
with him. The management is responsible for keeping its staff members insured as per 
government rules and regulations.

7. Environment
To preserve and protect the environment, all staff members are required to operate the 
company's facilities and processes so as to ensure maximum safety of the adjoining 
communities and strive continuously to improve environmental awareness and 
protections.

8.  Alcohol and  Drugs etc.
All types of gambling and betting at the company's work place are strictly forbidden. Also 
taking of any alcohols or drugs inside the work places is not allowed and any member of 
the staff, not abiding by these prohibitions will attract disciplinary as well as penal action 
under the law.

9. Coordination among staff members to maintain Discipline
All staff members will work in close coordination with their co-workers, superiors and 
colleagues. Every member will cooperate with other members so that the company's 
work is carried out effectively and efficiently. All cases of non- cooperation among staff 
members should be reported to the management for necessary and suitable action. 
Strict disciplinary action will be taken against those staff members who violate the rules 
and regulations of the company.

10.  Workplace harassment
All members of the staff will provide an environment that is free from harassment and in 
which all employees are equally respected.  Work place harassment means any action 
that creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive environment which may include sexual 
harassment, disparaging remarks based on gender, religious, race or ethnicity.

Chief Executive                        Director                          Chief Financial Officer

Rawalpindi Dated:  October 05, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of D.M. Textile Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of D.M. Textile Mills Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the 
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of 
our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof do not conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and do not give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively do not give a true and fair 
view of state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the loss, other comprehensive 
loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

(i) The Company sustained net loss of Rupees 7.524 million during the year ended 30 June 
2019 and as of that date its accumulated loss was Rupees 80.917 million. As of 30 June 2019, 
the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rupees 67.995 million. 
Liabilities of the Company include overdue amounts. The Company has been unable to arrange 
fresh financing for working capital and other purposes. The mill remained closed since 2014 due 
to shortage of working capital. As at the reporting date, the Company had few employees. The 
mill could not resume operations till the date of this report. The management of the Company did 
not provide us its assessment of going concern assumption used in preparation of these 
financial statements and the future financial projections indicating the economic viability of the 
Company. These events indicate a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its 
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. These financial statements 
(and notes thereto) do not disclose this fact. These financial statements have been prepared on 
the going concern basis.

(ii) As more fully explained in Note 15 to the financial statements, the Company advanced 
an amount of Rupees 51.150 million against purchase of property. The property could not be 
transferred in the Company's name due to the want of completion of legal formalities. Directions 
were given for transferring the property in the name of the Company within thirty days of the 
order of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated 29 November 2007. 
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SECP also ordered to calculate the amount of profit which could have been earned on the 
amount of Rupees 51.150 million if invested with any scheduled bank, on daily product basis in 
the relevant period and directed that this amount be deposited proportionately, in the 
Company's account, by directors who are penalized under the order. The Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of the Company filed an appeal before the Lahore High Court (LHC), Rawalpindi 
Bench whereby stay order was granted to suspend the operation of above said order. The 
Board of Directors of the Company, after getting valuation of the property at forced sale value of 
Rupees 72.007 million from M/s NAKMS Associates (Private) Limited, resolved in its meeting 
held on 23 April 2014 that the right in property along with fixtures and fittings be offered to the 
CEO at the fixed floor price of Rupees 75 million. Whereas, as per Capital Development 
Authority (CDA), the property has already been transferred in the name of CEO through a court 
decree. The LHC, Rawalpindi Bench in its interim order dated 06 February 2015 granted 
adjournment with the directions not to transfer / alienate the property / undertaking of the 
Company in any form or manner whatsoever. Meanwhile, the case has been transferred to the 
Islamabad High Court (IHC), Islamabad and on 03 May 2016, IHC, on submission of CEO, 
ordered to transfer the property in the name of the Company within sixty days. The CEO filed a 
petition before the IHC to seek relief on the grounds that the said property has already been 
attached in the cases titled The Bank of Punjab versus Bilal Fibers Limited and The Bank of 
Punjab versus Bilal Textiles (Private) Limited wherein the CEO was a guarantor. Meanwhile, the 
Board of Directors and the shareholders in their meetings held on 09 October 2016 and 31 
October 2016 respectively resolved to reverse the transaction of sale of property to CEO, 
subject to completion of legal formalities and in accordance with rules / laws / procedures. The 
Company filed a suit before the court of Senior Civil Judge (West), Islamabad dated 17 October 
2017 against the CEO while making SECP and CDA parties to the case for directions to transfer 
the property in the name of the Company, which is pending adjudication. Meanwhile, IHC, 
Islamabad vide its order dated 16 November 2017, reduced the penalty from Rupees 100,000 
to Rupees 50,000 to be paid by each director of the Company within the period of thirty days. 
The Company also filed an appeal before the LHC, Lahore Bench in May 2018 for detachment 
of the property, so the property can be transferred in the name of the Company, which is pending 
adjudication. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan filed an appeal before the 
Islamabad High Court (IHC), Islamabad, dated 13 September 2018 for execution of IHC 
decision dated 16 November 2017 to appoint statutory auditors to conduct a special audit to 
calculate the amount of profit which should have been earned on the amount of Rupees 51.150 
million, if invested with any schedule bank on daily product basis in the relevant period, and 
further requested the IHC to send notice to Lahore High Court, Lahore, for release of the 
property. The matter is pending adjudication. The Bank of Punjab filed an appeal before the 
Islamabad High Court, Islamabad to set-aside orders dated 03 May 2016 and 16 November 
2017. The matter is pending adjudication. We could not ensure compliance with the above 
stated directions and satisfy ourselves as to the use of forced sale value of the property for 
adjustment of the advance against property.

(iii) The Company entered into operating lease agreements with various parties to earn 
rental income. However, the related property has not been recognized as investment property in 
accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 40 'Investment Property' in these 
financial statements.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ('the Code') and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Except for the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section, we have determined 
that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. Because of 
the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report, 
we have concluded that the other information is materially misstated for the same reasons. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2019Annual Report 2019



09D.M. Textile Mills Ltd.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section 
of our report, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by 
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section 
of our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the 
statement of  comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the 
books of account and returns;

c) except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion 
section of our report, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees 
extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII 
of 1980). 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Raheel 
Arshad.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

ISLAMABAD

Date: October 05, 2019

10 D.M. Textile Mills Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MODIFIED REVIEW REPORT

To the members of D.M. Textile Mills Limited
   
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of 
Directors of D.M. Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2019 in 
accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.
 
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the 
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does 
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of 
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective 
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on 
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review 
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements 
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance 
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of 
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to 
assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that 
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not. 

Following instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations were 
observed which are not stated in the Statement of Compliance:

i. The Board has not appointed whole-time Company Secretary and Chief Financial 
Officer since the resignation of the previous Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer as 
required by the regulation 21 of the Regulations. Further, acting Company Secretary having 
additional charge of acting Chief Financial Officer does not fulfill the qualification criteria 
mentioned in regulation 23 of the Regulations;

ii. Head of Internal Audit does not fulfill the qualification criteria mentioned in regulation 24 
of the Regulations;



Iii. No member of the audit committee is “financially literate” in contravention of regulation 
28 [1(c)] of the Regulations; and

iv. The Company has not complied with the financial reporting and corporate compliance 
requirements of the Regulations. The financial statements do not give a true and fair 
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the loss, other 
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Based on our review, except for the above instances of non-compliance, nothing has come to 
our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations 
as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirement of the Regulations 
as reflected in the paragraph where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

ISLAMABAD
 
Date: October 05, 2019
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Sr. No. Reference Description 

I 9 As stated in para 9, the Board of Directors did not 
arrange directors training program for any director of 
the Company.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

Name of company D.M. Textile Mills Limited
Year ended 30 June 2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 

1. The total number of Directors is Seven as per the following:
a. Male: 7
b. Female: 0

2. The composition of board is as follows:

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than 
five listed companies, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed 
holding companies where applicable).

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps 
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting 
policies and procedures. 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant 
policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been 
maintained. 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters 
have been taken by Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of 
the Act and these Regulations. 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by 
a Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and 
circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for 
remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board arranged no orientation courses for its directors during the year. As per new 
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, the Board 
intends to follow the Directors' Training Programme in due course of time.

 Independent Director Mr. Shahid Hussain (Chairman)
Mr. Hussain Ahmad Ozgen
Mr. Amer Zeb

 
 

Other Non-Executive
Directors

Mr. Sami Ullah
Mr. Shahid Aziz

Executive Directors Mr. Mian Habib Ullah
Mr. Rao Khalid Pervaiz

Category Names  



 
 

Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee

One meeting was held during the financial year.

Meetings Frequency
 Audit Committee Five meetings were held during the financial year.  

14 D.M. Textile Mills Ltd.
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10. The Board has approved appointment of acting Company Secretary, CFO and Head of 
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment 
and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations. 

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

a) Audit Committee 

b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented 
and advised to the committees for compliance. 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committees were as per 
following:

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered 
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their 
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all 
its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other 
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard. 

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with. 

Rawalpindi
October 05, 2019 Chairman

 
 

Mr. Shahid Aziz Member (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Sami Ullah Member (Non-Executive Director)

NAME DESIGNATION 
 Mr. Hussain Ahmed Ozgen Chairman (Independent Director)  

 
 

Mr. Sami Ullah Member (Non-Executive Director)

Rao Khalid Pervaiz Member (Executive Director)

NAME DESIGNATION 
 Mr. Amer Zeb Chairman (Independent Director)  
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

I am pleased to present the financial reports of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

Due to continuous problems Mills could not resume its production process. However, the Board 

of Directors and Members have granted approval to alter the Principal Line of Business and 

name of the Company. In this regard, formal approvals by the Securities & Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan are in process.

The Management is trying its level best to utilize the available resources to increase the income 
and repayment of company's liabilities.  I appreciate the efforts of the Board & Management and 
hope for further improvement in future.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to acknowledge the contributions of our employees and 
cooperation by the financial institutions and other debt providers.

Shahid Hussain

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Rawalpindi: October 05, 2019
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Dear Shareholders,

ndThe Directors welcome you to the 62  Annual General Meeting of the Company and present 
audited accounts and annual reports for the year ended June 30, 2019 along with Auditors' 
Report thereon.

Composition of the Board

Total number of directors Seven
Male : 7
Female : 0

Composition
Independent Directors : 03
Non-Executive Directors : 02
Executive Directors : 02

Name of Directors as on 30 June 2019
Mr. Shahid Hussain : Chairman (Independent)
Mian Habib Ullah : Chief Executive / Executive Director
Mr. Shahid Aziz : Director (Non-Executive)
Mr. Hussain Ahmed Ozgen : Director (Independent)
Mr. Amer Zeb : Director (Independent)
Mr. Sami Ullah : Director (Non-Executive)
Rao Khalid Pervaiz : Director (Executive)

Committees of the Board
The board has formed two committees comprising of following members: 

a) Audit Committee 
1. Mr. Hussain Ahmed Ozgen - Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Mr. Shahid Aziz - Member (Non Executive Director)
3. Mr. Sami Ullah - Member (Non Executive Director)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
1. Mr. Amer Zeb - Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Mr. Sami Ullah - Member (Non Executive Director)
3. Rao Khalid Pervaiz - Member (Executive Director)

Performance: Net Profit/(Loss)

During the year Company suffered a net loss of Rs. (7.524) Million as compared to previous 
year net loss of Rs. (15.862) Million.
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Comparative financial results are given below:

Rupees

Year  Ended on 30-06-2019 30-06-2018

Administrative and general expenses (28,362,698) (38,126,034)

Other Income 24,871,368 20,629,713

Financial and Other Charges (417,931) (674,537)

Provision for Taxation (3,615,180) 2,308,112

Loss after  taxation (7,524,441) (15,862,746)

Loss per share - Basic and diluted (2.47) (5.20)

Breakup Value per share in Rs 169.98 172.39

Debt Servicing

As per Settlement Agreement with Faysal Bank Ltd, Company is paying monthly installments 
regularly and balance amount has to be paid in 6 monthly installments. Despite of continuous 
problems, company managed to partially pay the outstanding liabilities towards suppliers, 
employees, property tax and social security, EOBI etc. Management is in the process of 
negotiating with other debt providers/suppliers so as to reduce the financial liabilities of the 
company. 

Dividend

The Directors have not recommended dividend due to loss.

Change in Accounting Policy
In terms of relevant laws & standards, the Board of Directors grated approval to adopt the 
required accounting policies and to make the necessary changes/adjustments where 
applicable.

Directors have granted specific approval for the following transactions / adjustments 
mentioned in the financial statements.

Rupees
Operating fixed assets  cost of additions 900,000
Operating fixed assets  cost of deletions 25,439,350
Long outstanding liabilities written back 347,397
Related party transactions as disclosed in financial statements.

Directors have also granted general approval for following transactions in the 
financial statements. 

a. Approval of expenditures including Capital expenditure.
b. Advances as given in note 21

Statement on Compliance with the best practices of Corporate Governance.

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly 
the state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.
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b) Company has maintained proper books of accounts.

c) In preparation of financial statements, appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgments.

d) International Accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in 
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately 
disclosed.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented 
and monitored. The process of review will continue and any weakness in control will be 
removed.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern.

g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, 
as detailed in the listing regulations.

h) Key Operating and Financial Data for the last six years in summarized form is annexed 
to the Annual Report.

i) There are no overdue taxes and levies as on June 30, 2019 except reported in notes 
under contingencies and commitments in the balance sheet.

j) Pattern of Shareholding and Additional information as required under CCG is also 
annexed to the Annual Report.

k) During the year, Four Board Meetings, five Audit Committee meetings and one HR and 
Remuneration committee meeting were held. The attendance of the Directors is as 
follow:

Name of Director Number of Meetings Attended

Board Audit HR &
Meeting Committee Remuneration

Committee

Mr. Shahid Hussain 2 N/A N/A

Mian Habib Ullah 4 N/A N/A

Mr. Shahid Aziz 4 5 N/A

Mr. Hussain Ahmed Ozgen 3 3 N/A

Mr. Sami Ullah 4 5 1

Mr. Amer Zeb 3 N/A 0

Rao Khalid Pervaiz 4 N/A 1
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(Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend meeting due to 
their pre-occupation)

l) Messrs. Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial Model Town, Lahore 
are our share registrar under section 195 of the companies Act, 2017.

Future Prospects & Plans

Due to continuing problems and high inflation costs, the Mills could not resume its production 
process. As more explicitly explained in Note-1 of this report, the Board of Directors and 
Members of the Company have granted approval to alter the principal line of business and to 
change the name of the Company for which formal procedural/legal formalities are in process.

The Management is trying its level best to utilize the available recourses. Income has been 
considerably increased and expenses are decreased as compared to last financial year. 
Despite of the problems, Company is paying back the outstanding liabilities which will further 
reduce the burden of financial cost. Management has positive intention and capability to revive 
the company.

Auditors

The retiring Auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company Chartered Accounts being eligible 
offer themselves for re-appointment. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board 
recommended the appointment of M/s Riaz Ahmad & Co, Chartered Accountants, as external 
auditor for the next financial year.

Remarks on Auditors' Report & Review Report to the members:
(Quote: 1)
The Company sustained net loss of Rupees 7.524 million during the year ended 30 June 
2019 and as of that date its accumulated loss was Rupees 80.917 million. As of 30 June 
2019, the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rupees 67.995 
million. Liabilities of the Company include overdue amounts. The Company has been 
unable to arrange fresh financing for working capital and other purposes. The mill 
remained closed since 2014 due to shortage of working capital. As at the reporting date, 
the Company had few employees. The mill could not resume operations till the date of 
this report. The management of the Company did not provide us its assessment of going 
concern assumption used in preparation of these financial statements and the future 
financial projections indicating the economic viability of the Company. These events 
indicate a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its assets 
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. These financial statements 
(and notes thereto) do not disclose this fact. These financial statements have been 
prepared on the going concern basis. (Unquote: 1)

The management has successfully settled almost all of its entire outstanding loans due 
towards financial institutions. Rental income of the company is increasing consistently. 
Further, the Board of Directors and Members of the Company have already resolved to 
alter the principal line of business and change of name as well and formal SECP 
approval is in process. Management has positive intention and capability and hopeful to

Annual Report 2019Annual Report 2019
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revive the company. Also trying the level best to negotiate with other debt providers to 
settle amicably. Due to the settlement reached/to be reached with the debt providers 
and already initiated process for the revival of company, the Management has prepared 
the accounts on going concern basis.

(Quote: 2)
As more fully explained in Note 15 to the financial statements, the Company 
advanced an amount of Rupees 51.150 million against purchase of property. 
The property could not be transferred in the Company's name due to the want of 
completion of legal formalities. Directions were given for transferring the 
property in the name of the Company within thirty days of the order of Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated 29 November 2007. 
SECP also ordered to calculate the amount of profit which could have been 
earned on the amount of Rupees 51.150 million if invested with any scheduled 
bank, on daily product basis in the relevant period and directed that this amount 
be deposited proportionately, in the Company's account, by directors who are 
penalized under the order. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company 
filed an appeal before the Lahore High Court (LHC), Rawalpindi Bench whereby 
stay order was granted to suspend the operation of above said order. The Board 
of Directors of the Company, after getting valuation of the property at forced sale 
value of Rupees 72.007 million from M/s NAKMS Associates (Private) Limited, 
resolved in its meeting held on 23 April 2014 that the right in property along with 
fixtures and fittings be offered to the CEO at the fixed floor price of Rupees 75 
million. Whereas, as per Capital Development Authority (CDA), the property has 
already been transferred in the name of CEO through a court decree. The LHC, 
Rawalpindi Bench in its interim order dated 06 February 2015 granted 
adjournment with the directions not to transfer / alienate the property / 
undertaking of the Company in any form or manner whatsoever. Meanwhile, the 
case has been transferred to the Islamabad High Court (IHC), Islamabad and on 
03 May 2016, IHC, on submission of CEO, ordered to transfer the property in the 
name of the Company within sixty days. The CEO filed a petition before the IHC 
to seek relief on the grounds that the said property has already been attached in 
the cases titled The Bank of Punjab versus Bilal Fibers Limited and The Bank of 
Punjab versus Bilal Textiles (Private) Limited wherein the CEO was a guarantor. 
Meanwhile, the Board of Directors and the shareholders in their meetings held 
on 09 October 2016 and 31 October 2016 respectively resolved to reverse the 
transaction of sale of property to CEO, subject to completion of legal formalities 
and in accordance with rules / laws / procedures. The Company filed a suit before 
the court of Senior Civil Judge (West), Islamabad dated 17 October 2017 against 
the CEO while making SECP and CDA parties to the case for directions to 
transfer the property in the name of the Company, which is pending adjudication. 
Meanwhile, IHC, Islamabad vide its order dated 16 November 2017, reduced the 
penalty from Rupees 100,000 to Rupees 50,000 to be paid by each director of 
the Company within the period of thirty days. The Company also filed an appeal 
before the LHC, Lahore Bench in May 2018 for detachment of the property, so 
the property can be transferred in the name of the Company, which is pending 
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adjudication. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan filed an 
appeal before the Islamabad High Court (IHC), Islamabad, dated 13 September 
2018 for execution of IHC decision dated 16 November 2017 to appoint statutory 
auditors to conduct a special audit to calculate the amount of profit which should 
have been earned on the amount of Rupees 51.150 million, if invested with any 
schedule bank on daily product basis in the relevant period, and further 
requested the IHC to send notice to Lahore High Court, Lahore, for release of the 
property. The matter is pending adjudication. The Bank of Punjab filed an appeal 
before the Islamabad High Court, Islamabad to set-aside orders dated 03 May 
2016 and 16 November 2017. The matter is pending adjudication. We could not 
ensure compliance with the above stated directions and satisfy ourselves 
as to the use of forced sale value of the property for adjustment of the 
advance against property. (Unquote:2)

As stated by the Auditors, the property could not be transferred in the name of the 
Company due to the want of completion of legal formalities. CEO filed an appeal before 
the Lahore High Court Rawalpindi Bench against the above mentioned SECP Order. 
The Honourable Court in its Order dated 26-10-2009 suspended the operation of the 
SECP Order. Keeping in view the financial position of the company and the legal 
formalities, the Board of Directors discussed this issue several times and finally decided 
to offer the first right of refusal to the CEO at fixed floor price of Rs.75 Million. As a result 
the company gained Rs.20.148 Million; and this long outstanding issue was resolved 
with approval of the members of the company. Later the case was transferred to 
Islamabad High Court Islamabad (IHC). The CEO, in the case proceedings before the 
Islamabad High Court, Islamabad on 03 May 2016 submitted to transfer the property in 
the name of the Company within sixty days. The CEO moved an application before the 
IHC for placement of additional documents on the grounds that in the given 
circumstances he has surrendered subject property rights in favour of D.M. Textile Mills 
Ltd and same fact is approved by the Board of Directors and Members of the Company, 
but the property has been attached by the Lahore High Court Lahore in two different 
cases titled Bank of Punjab versus Bilal Fibres Limited and Bank of Punjab versus Bilal 
Textiles (Private) Limited. On 30-11-2016, IHC allowed the Application for placement of 
additional documents on record for the reasons stated therein. To complete the legal 
formalities, as per advise of our legal consultant(s), the Company has filed a civil suit 
before the Senior Civil Islamabad (West) for specific performance of Agreement to Sell 
and Surrender Deed and Permanent Injunction.

Islamabad High Court vide its Order dated 16 November 2017, decided the court case 
“D.M. Textile Mills Ltd Vs. Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan”. As per 
opinion of our legal advisor, main operative points of the decision are as under:- (1) 
Penalty on 6 Directors has been reduced from Rs.100,000/= each to Rs.50,000/= each 
{has been paid by the concerned Directors} (2) Directors shall make efforts to release 
the property from both court cases at Lahore High Court Lahore Bench titled Bilal Fibres 
Ltd Vs Bank of Punjab and Bilal Textiles (Pvt) Ltd Vs Bank of Punjab (3) After releasing 
the property, in terms of his statement before the Islamabad High Court, CEO will 
transfer the property into the name of the Company. In compliance of the Islamabad 
High Court Order, Objection Application has been filed before the Lahore High Court 
where Property is attached. Company has filed reply in Bank of Punjab application (CM 
Ind.89/2019) as well and outcome is awaited.
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(Quote: 3)

The Company entered into operating lease agreements with various parties to 
earn rental income. However, the related property has not been recognized as 
investment property in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 
40 'Investment Property' in these financial statements. (Unquote: 3)

The Board of Directors and Members of the Company have already resolved to alter the 
principal line of business and name of the Company and formal procedural/legal 
formalities are in process.

(Quote: 4)
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. Because of the significance of the matters discussed in the 
Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report, we have concluded that the other 
information is materially misstated for the same reasons. (Unquote: 4)

The Board of Directors is of the view that as explained above, there is no material 
misstatement.

(Quote: 5)
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse 
Opinion section of our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit 
or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and 
the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof do not conform 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and do not give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so 
required and respectively do not give a true and fair view of state of the Company's 
affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the loss, other comprehensive loss, the changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended (Unquote: 5)

The Board of Directors is of the view that the company follows the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the accounts do give a true and fair view of the 
state of company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 in the light of the facts stated above.

(Quote:6)
The Board has not appointed whole-time Company Secretary and Chief Financial 
Officer since the resignation of the previous Company Secretary and Chief Financial 
Officer as required by the regulation 21 of the Regulations. Further, acting Company 
Secretary having additional charge of acting Chief Financial Officer does not fulfill the 
qualification criteria mentioned in regulation 23 of the Regulations; (Unquote: 6)

The Company is making efforts to fulfill the requirements and also advertised in the 
Newspaper. However, professionals are not willing to join the Company due to closure 
of Mills and various reasons. The requirement will be fulfilled as soon as possible.

Annual Report 2019Annual Report 2019
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(Quote:7)
Head of Internal Audit does not fulfill the qualification criteria mentioned in regulation 
24 of the Regulations; (Unquote: 7)

The Board of Directors is of the view that as per the new Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, our existing Head of Internal Audit fulfills the 
qualification criteria. He is graduate and has experience of more than 20 years.

(Quote:8)
No member of the audit committee is “financially literate” in contravention of regulation 
28 [1(c)] of the Regulations; and (Unquote: 8)

Board is of the view that members of existing Audit Committee have relevant 
experience. One member is Area Incharge of the National Investment Trust and has 
long experience of financial matters. Other two members are also graduate and 
experienced. Compliance with Regulations will be made as soon as possible.

(Quote:9)
The Company has not complied with the financial reporting and corporate compliance 
requirements of the Regulations. The financial statements do not give a true and fair 
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the loss, other 
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 
(Unquote: 9)

The Board of Directors is of the view that the company follows the corporate and 
financial reporting requirements of the Code, approved accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan and the accounts do give a true and fair view of the state of 
company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 in the light of the facts stated above.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The company is aware of its corporate and social responsibilities and doing its best within the 
available resources.

Director's Remuneration Policy
The Company pays remuneration to two of its Executive Directors. No remuneration is paid to 
the Non-Executive and Independent Directors other than meeting fees.

Board Evaluation
The Board has developed a mechanism for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors.

Acknowledgement

The Directors wish to place on record their acknowledgement for the cooperation extended by 
the financial institutions. Appreciation is also due to the employees of the company for their hard 
work and devoted efforts for the betterment of the company.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

Chief Executive              Director

Rawalpindi: October 05, 2019
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Ðzgå
´4545ÿ GFG

H
Å¶ÅzzÐÈìXZkg7g^Å@*gõJ-vÆP5i}¸ZzgF�z!*g{aZzZg 2014 £�Æn5+$k5ë

EEYqÝ:�mXF

Ñzq:�mXvZOðä�vÆ�ìg�Æ}.�Æ!*g}~ZZKgZñ7�~��Zy�!*]ZzgwÆâàZ0+ZizVÅ»g~~ZEw

�ñTÐ́
4-öF
E

»ZO�~ZPxªCÙ�XtzZu]ñZ�Å)DÃªCÙ�D�TÐvÆ�ìg�Å&¢A6,�uZ0�Zkn�Yì�

Zzgf)�Zg-VÃ7gZ:�nXâ1CÍØZg})ZzgZy6,�Ø�âF(Zk|ÃzZä7�DXtâ1C realize ¬x»gz!*g~qÑ]~tZLZU*NVÃ

" ÍØZg}�ìg�Æ¦g6,»gG��

ZOðä»x!Ð½âÓxâ1CZ�ZgzVÆ�BZL�Û£Y]Æç5]i�n�X�ZtÅWæyáZF,(,SìX1geWseZJËiZzgMZyä

Å!*�°ik,¿ìXZOðÅ+Mµì SECP vÆ6,±»gz!*g~g�z$+wZzg**xps�äÅZYi]�}�~ìXZke~

�äÅZygBbìX'×h+',WVZOð�v�Ûn�ZgzVÐç5]ð�äÆn7g~ÃÒ�g�ìX�Ûn revive ZzgZ,®)gBbìZzgvÃ

ÆnYg~6,Z�YzÐZOðät revival �ZgzVÆ�Bð�{ç5]Zzg�v�Ûn�ZgzVÆ�B�ç5]ðGYgì�ZzgvÅ

�!*]�ìg�ÅãC�6,»gG�X

#̄âewN*îyÔÑ�gÔvÆ¥gZZg� 1-K Æ�xi»g&Ò5ë FE)6,Z�f$(�ÔzgWgOÔ 195 gZlÅÔ

~,ÐªCÙH�HìÔ1geWseZJËiZzg 1 Yg~)bZzgÑ�'~Z��ÅzzÐvaZzZg~&¢AÃbw:�mX6�Zkg7ĝÆâ�̂

MZyävÆ6,±»gz!*g~g�z$+wZzg**xps�äÅZYi]�}�~ìXZke~¢zg~�âã»gzZðik,¿ìXZOðZL�ø7[z�b

Ã4+Z0+Zi~ZEw�D�ñZKWæyÃo�&(,Jc*ìZzgZy%ZY]~Ô�wÅÚ¶�ðìX)bÆ!*z��vzZ�]Z�Z�g�ìT

�äÅ&¢AgBbìX revive ÅzzÐâà1ú'×h+Á�ÇXZ"3�é
EGðÅ+MµìZzgvÃ

(2 )Z½kX

�gz[Zi+zZ÷�c*X�âãç5]ÅzzÐ 51.150 ~ic*�{,�~�ìÔväYGZ�y%h+äÆn 15 6�â1CÍØZg}Æâ^ "

�yÆZ0+gYGZ�vÆ**xR,Zc�ä»¹XtÌ¬�c* 30 vÆeZ],IiÃ 2007 âÞ 29 äZL¬Cgõ SECP YGZ�vÆ**xR,Zc:�mX

�H��[ÎN�ZÏ²�~Z¤/tg¶ozwJ~gziZ:ÅãC�6,¦�zZðYCÂZk6,Ho«áCXZzg¬�c*�tg¶z{eZ],IiX6,%̀â:�ZìÔ

stay Æqgz!*Ñ¬6,¿�gWæ» SECP Ú�&ÐvÆ3D~¦�zZNXrZhÁäÑ�g;ðÃĝgZzf~l~g^�Z],Å�VÐ

��zZäÆ�ZK)ñgQ Rs.72.007 Yg~�ZXvÆ1geWseZ],Iiäxi"5À,ç
EGEZÁÏZf$ÐYGZ�Å6gZ�Ûz|#z=Zc order

�~W�ÛHYñX²
´4545ÿ GFG

H
ezCZågKÆ_. 75 Ãàg~�~�YGZ�~£t;

¡½g?ç
E

FZzg©rZhÁð�{7+ 2014 Z6,s 23

{àg~



29D.M. Textile Mills Ltd.

Annual Report 2019Annual Report 2019

Zzg�wÃ})6,ZÇf$(� " JWsº[¯x�wÃ$i� " (eZJIiÑ�g;ðÃg^Æ�t�zâVåV 2 �́eZJIiäZ�Z��c*ì)

(6,Z6,KzZ¦/Zg�zZäÆ�ÔZLÒyÆ_.ÔÏZ~ZzYGZ�vÆ**xR,Zc�}X 3 Ð6,Z6,KÃzZ¦/Zg�zZäÅÃÒ�,) " **xJWsº[

�Z],��~�ì��ZÌ°Zª(~ñ8-ìXväJ Objection Appliation ZsxW!*�;ðÃg^Æ¬Åz~ÔÑ�g;ðÃĝÑ�gl~

Wsº[Å�gpZ�&»�Z[¦�zZ�c*ìXçnZÌ°Zª(~ñ8-ì

ZpZÅ 2015 �Ûzg~ 06 YGZ�rZhÁxVÔZvÆ**x&+g=°Zr�R,Zc�_ìXÑ�g;ðÃg^gZzf~läZL�g~¬ñgQ

ÃRZsxW!*�;ð 2016#03 ZµZµ:HYñXZÏ�zgZyñgQ / Z&+g"5½5ë HGE
Y

ÃR,Zc / ZYi]�ï�ñ@ZW$Å�ËÌßg]~vÅYGZ�

�yÆZ0+gYGZ�vÆ**xR,Zc�ä»¬�c*XrZhÁäZsxW!*�;ðÃĝ 60 ÃĝR,Zc��HXrZhÁÆÒy6,ZsxW!*�;ðÃĝä

�_ì��JWsº[¯x�wÃ"2.ç JGEi�ZzgJWsº[¯x�wÃb Attach ~gµÅ�gpZ�&�Z],Å�YGZ�¬��zlâ]~

31 Zzg 2016 ZÆ', 09 )6,ZÇf$(���VrZhÁ�ðåZÏ�zgZy1geWseZ],IiZzg_2.ç
IJG�®giäZK5�ÂV~��!*nKMñgQ

) ÃÂ�Nàg~�~�rZhÁÃYGZ�Å�Ûz|#ÅR,Z4,½Ãg��âã»gzZðå�äÆ�zZ:��c*YñXväÎwQ 2016 ZÆ',

ÃÏZ~ZzÆÜs�ú{�Z],HìT~_5½3ð GGgKZhZÞâzZzg
´4545ÿ GFG

H
ezCZågKÃ0*gK¯c*ìZzg 2017 ZÆ', 17 ZsxW!*�Å°Zª(~ ( f!

16 �gpZ�&Å�ì�ZyÃ6,Z6,KvÆ**xR,Zc�äÅ@ZáÅYñÔt�ú{Ìik,ZpZìXZÏ�zgZyZsxW!*�;ðÃg^äZL¬ÔñgQ

ÃÑ�g 2018 �yÆZ0+gZ�Z�**ìXvä# 30 gz[��c*��CÙeZ],Iä 50,000 gz[ÐÁ�Æ+ 100,000 Æ�%̀â:+ 2017 âÞ

Æ!*"$�Z],Åì@*�6,Z6,KvÆ**xR,Zc�nXtZhÌZÌ°Zª(~ñ8-ìX detachment ;ðÃg^Ñ�gF@~ÌZq-ZhYGZ�Å

HgHYñ@* statutory auditor Æ¬Æ_. 2017 âÞ 16 Ã�gpZ�&�Z],Åì� 2018m13 äZsxW!*�;ðÃĝ~ñgQ SECP

�gz[ËJ~gziZ:ÅãC�6,¦�zZ�́²�~qÝ�Mh¸XZsx 51.50 �SàWe�̂}Zzgo«Åg¶»�[Î�Cñ��+

W!*�;ðÃĝÐ'×h+�gpZ�&Å�ì�Ñ�g;ðÃĝÃâF5Yñ�YGZ�ÃzZ¦/ZgHYñXçnZÌJ-°Zª(~ñ8-ìXJWsº[

Ã»HYñXçnZÌJ-°Zª(~ñ8-ìXëqgz 2017 âÞ 16 Zzg 2016#03 äZsxW!*�;ðÃg^~�gpZ�&�Z],�ì�¬ñgQ

X" !*ÑZ©â]ÅcZg~ÃD:¯nZzgZLW\Ãt:�n�YGZ�Å�~�Ûz!7ÃYGZ�Æn�Ø�Zi+zZ÷ÆúnZi+óHYñ

6�WeñiäÒyHÔ�âãç5]ÅzzÐYGZ�vÆ**xR,Zc:�mXrZhÁäÑ�g;ðÃg^gZzf~l~g^�Z],Å�VÐ

Yg~�ZXvÅâàqª(Zzg�âã¢zgÂVÃæÃgnp�ñ1geWseZJIiäF�«ZkçA stay order Æqgz!*Ñ¬6,¿�gWæ» SECP

�»o«�ZZzg 20.148 ���¦jg6,Zõ¶W�ÛHYñXZkÆË~vÃ+ 75 6,cÅZzgWy%~êH�rZhÁÃgAiw»ªh+

�yÆZ0+gYGZ� 60 t�k,ÐZ��çnMiÅàg~Ði�ZX�ZiZVRZsxW!*�;ðÃĝv��HXrZhÁÆÒy6,ZsxW!*�;ðÃĝä

vÆ**xR,Zc�ä»¬�c*XrZhÁäZsxW!*�;ðÃg^~gµÅ�gpZ�&�Z],ÅZzg'×h+»½Z]7�äÅZYi]â�ZzgZ+¬Å�

z{YGZ�~£tu&+g�`TÅàg~vÆ1geWseZJIiZzgMZy�}`�pYGZ�¬�æÑ�g;ðÃĝÑ�g�z ~ ñ��{qÑ]

�_ì��JWsº[¯x�wÃ"2.ç JGEi�ZzgJWsº[¯x�wÃb)6,ZÇf$(���VrZhÁ�ð Attach lâ]~

Ã7��{z�;]Å¯6,Z�°»½Z]7�äÅ�gpZ�&ÃàgHX�âã»27g}�äÆ 2016 âÞ 30 åXdiZsxW!*�;ðÃĝäñgQ

nÔZL�âãçzyÆtg}ÐÔvä�ÎwQZsxW!*�)f!(Ãç@}Zzgu&+gei+Å_54h4¨ë FGG
E6,ÃgNZh6,â"3ïEEHZ

+B5½jè
E
EEIEÆn�ú{�Z],H

»êHXøg}�âã " e~Z*ÃbFÊ-)45å GGHH¯x_5½3ð GGgKZhZÞâzWs0*Îy " Ãl) 2017 âÞ 16 ìXZsxW!*�;ðÃĝäZL¬ñgQ

gz[��c*�HìX� 50,000 gz9ÐÁ�Æ 100,000 (eZJIi6,%̀â: 1 Õ]qgzfs�X) operative �ÅgZñÆ_.�ÆZë

e¤/~¬
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(3 )Z½kX

Æ_.uât 40 väZK�Zt�Zg~Wæy(,JäÆnF0*gkVÐ�Zt�Zg~ç@}G�X@*ë´YGZ�ÃÎZŅ̃ZòZ»"545ë JEHEY�gei "

" »gZ:YGZ�Æîg6,t7H�Hìþ

Åik,¿ SECP v»1geWseZJËiZzgMZyävÆ6,±»gz!*g~g�z$+wZzg**xps�äÅZYi]�}�~ìXZke~ì

(4 )Z½kX

â1CÍØZgzVÆWe^Æ!*g}~øg~f)�Zg~�v¥â]Ã7,­ìÔZ(�D�ñÔt¢8�H�v¥â]â1CÍØZgzVÐ "

ªCÙ�C�XZ¤/Ô»xÅâÎ�ëäH materially misstated �Ôc*We^~qÝH�HøgZDÔc*�zu~§q  materially inconsistent

basis for ìZzg�ZÐªCÙ�**ìXXç5]6,øg~g7g^ material misstatement ìÔëZk³6,
(;-Aõ E
XE
F���v¥â]Å

�ð material mistatement ~cÅ�ìXÔëZk³6,ã��Z7z�;]ÅzzÐ�v¥â]~ adverse opinion section"ì

7ìX material misstatement 1geWseZJIi»â'ì�Zz6,�~�z�0V�¯6,Ãð

(5 )Z½kX

~�Ø� adverse opinion section øg~gZñ~Zzgøg~4+¥â]Æ_.Zzg��~�z�0VÆ_.Ôøg~g7g^ "þ

Wæy»ÒyÔZrK~p~»ÒyÔSj»ÒyÔâFÆ�B� comprehensive ç5]�ZÌÅzzÐÔâ1CZq»ÒyÔ�c*vy»ÒyÔ

J-2019 �y 30 Zk»z�W�Ô0*Îy~gZòZ»îì�geÆ_.7�ZzgvZlÆ_.¥â]7�ïT§q¢zg~�Zzg

" vÆ�g�&Zzg²:ç5]»58~î E7�ïXZzgvy»ÔZkÆYìvy»ÔZkÆSj»ZzgZrK~p~»þ

ÅgzÝ~�g�&Zzg
 

1geWseZJIi»â'ì�vàg�{Z»îì�gei6,¿�Cì��0*Îy~gZò�XZzgÍØZg}Zz6,�Ø��ë

Ã7�D�X  2019 �y 30 ²:îg6,vÆç5]',Zñ�w
&B-+*î
EG

(6 )Z½kX

Æ�Àzzvø~ZZzgr+̧WWHg7HX'×h+�ì£x 21 Z#Ð��vø~ZZzgr+̧WWäZ
]4�§ö
GE

�c*ì1geägcøÅÔ "

" Æ�(£g7gZ7�@* 23 vø~Æ0*kr+̧WW»Z�°eg`ìz{gcøÅÔ

vZk¢zg]Ã7gZ�äÅÃÒ�g�ìZzgZ¶g~Z3gÌ�c*ì@*ë́&zg��Zk£g6,7gZZF,D�FÈ�äZzgZÅzzÐ

7g~��~YñÏX requirement 7WgìXA¢~e�Zt

(7 )Z½kX

X" Æ_.ÃZ
Å3©5»4jè
GEGGIE»£g7gZ7�@* 24 ZÚ9We^�gcøÅÔ "

!*�°{àg~

Y,̂{
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Æ�øgZñ��{ZÚ9We^�(�/6,7gZZF,@*ìX¤/�Zf$ 2019 1geWseZ],I»ìwì�qw�~~àg�z{ÃeWs»g7gf$ÍgS

�wÐic*�{»�/g�rìX 20 ìZzg

(8 )Z½kX

" ÅÜszgi~ì 28{1(c)} Weŵ»ÃðMâàîg6,pZ0+{7�z�gcø "þ

1geWseZ],I»â'ì�ñ��{wÆMZy�́/gnp�XZq-gÁ̧òâ1CR,�&»´º»Z�g`ìZzgzWâ1C�/g�rìX�zu}�z

MZyÌ¤/�f$Zzg�/»g�XA¢e�egcøÅzÅYñÏX

(9 )Z½kX

vägcÉ4n.ç G
IEEÅ+̧g7gãZzg»g7gf$g7gãÅ¢zg]Ã7gZ7HìXvÅ+̧0*Îy~gZòZ»îì�geÆ_.»g7 "

" Æ�g�&Zzg²:ç5]»58~î E7�ï 2019 �y 30 Å�XÅ<å XEZ+̧)vyÔYìvy»ÒyÔSjZzgZrK~p´V!*"$�w

1geWseZJIi»â'ì�vàg�{Z»îì�gei6,¿�Cì��0*Îy~gZò�XZzgÍØZg}Zz6,�Ø��ëÅgzÝ~�g�&Zzg

Ã7�D�X  2019 �y 30 ²:îg6,vÆç5]',Zñ�w
&B-+*î
EG

vZK»g7gf$Zzg�Yf)�Zg-VÐWÇ{ìZzg�ø7[z�bÆ_.ÃÒ�CìX

vZL�zZhÁeZ],IiÃZ%̀]�îìX**yZhÁeZ],IiZzg)Y�ZgeZ],IiÃ):Æ´z{ÃðZ�Z57ÅYCX

1geäZL(Zzg»g��ÏÆY,̂}»!5¿.ç GEEx¯c*�ZìX

eZ],Iiâ1CZ�ZgzVÆ¬zyÆ�g�XvÆ5i}�Z�Æ���Z,VävÅ4~ÆnÎZzg�Ð»xHX

2019 ZÆ', 05 gZzf~:

)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at factory 
premises at Industrial Area, Westridge, Rawalpindi, on Monday, October 28, 2019 at 03:00 
PM to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the Minutes of the Extra Ordinary Annual General Meeting held on 31-05-
2019.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the annual audited accounts of the company for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 together with Chairman's review, directors', and auditors' reports 
thereon.

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration. Retiring auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & 
Company being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution(s) as ordinary resolution(s), with 
or without any modification, addition or deletion in terms of section 183(3)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2017.

1. Revalidation of Approval for Sale of Land & Building
Resolved that, “Ordinary Resolution pertaining to sale of approx 07.19 Kanal land 
comprising open area and old worker quarters passed by the AGM held on 27 October 
2018 be and is hereby revalidated for one year from the date of passing of this 
resolution”.

Further resolved that, “Board of Directors of the Company or their nominee(s) as the board of 
directors may from time to time specially designate for the purpose, be and are hereby severally 
authorized to take any or all actions necessary or conducive for fulfilling any requirement or in 
implementation thereof including, without limitation, to negotiate, finalize and execute as 
applicable any and all contracts, instruments, power of attorney, notices, certificates, 
documents (of whatever nature and description) for or in connection with the aforesaid, issue 
any notices seek any approvals, make any filings and do all such acts, deeds and things as they 
may deem necessary and / or expedient”.

GENERAL BUSINESS

1. To transact any other business with the permission of the chair. 

Statement of material facts under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 is being sent to the 

members along with notice of AGM.

By the order of the Board

Date: 05 October 2019 Rao Khalid Pervaiz
(Director)
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Notes:

1. The members' register will remain closed from 20 October 2019 to 28 October 2019 
(both days inclusive). Transfers received at Share Registrar Office, Corplink (Pvt) Ltd, 
Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore or our registered office by the 
close of business on 19 October, 2019 will be entertained.

2. A member eligible to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as 
proxy to attend and vote in the meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received 
by the company at the registered office not later than 48 hours before the time for 
holding the meeting.

3. Shareholders are requested to immediately notify the change in address, if any.

4. CDC account holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in circular 
No.1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan:

a. For attending the meeting

i). In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the 
person whose securities are in group account and their registration details are 
uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing 
his original computerized national identity card (CNIC) or original passport at the 
time of attending the meeting.

ii). In case of corporate entity, the board of directors' resolution/power of attorney 
with specimen signatures of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been 
provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting

b. For appointing proxies

i). In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the 
person whose securities are in group account and their registration details are 
uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above 
requirement.

ii). The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses 
and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iii). Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy 
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iv). The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the 
meeting.

v). In case of corporate entity, the board of directors' resolution/power of attorney 
with specimen signatures shall be submitted (unless it has been provided 
earlier) along with proxy form to the company.

Financial Statements for the year ended 30-06-2019 are being uploaded on the website 
of the Company www.dmtextile.com.pk.
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Textile industry especially old units have been passing through severe crises for the past few 
years due to market recess and high energy cost and rising cost of production etc.

Company is facing financial problems and has to pay the liabilities of the financial institutions, 
suppliers, employees, debt providers, EOBI, Social Security, Cantonment Board and income 
taxes etc. Therefore, it is appropriate to dispose off the said piece of land. The Board of Directors 
of the Company in their meeting held on April 20, 2016 & 06 October 2017 after due 
consideration has decided to sell aprox 07.19 Kanal piece of land comprising about 40 years old 
worker quarters and open area of the company subject to consent of members of the company 
in general meeting and clearance from the banks/financial institutions where such assets are 
under lien/charge.

1. Members of the Company in their meetings held on 31 October 2016 & 28 October 2017 
granted approval for sale of this piece of land/building. Due to non-availability of good 
buyer(s), these assets could not be sold.

The information required under Notification SRO No. 1227/2005 dated 12 December 
2005 is as follow:

Description Owner/Leased Assets/Rupees

Detail of Assets to be sold 07.19 Kanal Land comprising 
open area and old worker quarters

Location Factory premises, Westridge
Industrial Area, Rawalpindi

Cost of Land & building Rs.4,721,085/=

Book Value Rs.60,650,523/=

Revalued amount Rs.39,559,100/=

Approximate current market price/ Rs. 33,625,235/=
fair value

It is proposed to place the resolution as mentioned at Agenda No. 1 of Special Business 
above for approval of members in the AGM.

As per requirement, additional information with respect to sale of assets is as under:

The proposed manner of disposal Outright sale and/or through
any other mean (advertisement
for tenders, quotations, bids etc), 
to be sold in a transparent manner.
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Reason for the disposal/sale To pay off the liabilities of the Company

Benefits expected to accrue to the The sale proceeds will be 
shareholders used to decrease the financial 

liabilities/over due payments to avoid
 litigations.

Nature and extent of interest, if any, None of the Directors have any
of Directors used to decrease the financial 

liabilities/over due payments to 
avoid litigations.

Availability of Relevant Documents:

By the order of the Board

Date: 05 October 2019 Rao Khalid Pervaiz
(Director)

The documents pertaining to above resolutions are available for inspection at the registered 
office of the company on any working day upto 27 October 2019 during business hours and 
also at the time of meeting.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR

2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

5,000,000 (2018: 5,000,000)

ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 50,000,000               50,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 3 30,524,290               30,524,290

Revenue reserve - accumulated loss (80,917,235)              (75,583,279)    

Capital reserve - surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment - net of deferred income tax 4 569,238,613             571,260,712   -                             

Total equity 518,845,668             526,201,723   

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  

  

Long term financing 5 -                             1,766,260       

Liability against assets subject to finance lease 6 -                             -                   

Employees' retirement benefit 7 3,355,644                 3,129,793       

Deferred income tax liability 8 5,346,272                 7,240,523       

8,701,916                 12,136,576

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 9 97,200,154               90,061,666
Accrued mark-up 10 20,767,825               20,767,825     
Short term borrowings 11 4,803,735                 11,890,030     
Current portion of non-current liabilities 12 2,424,791                 4,023,357
Unclaimed dividend 144,947                    144,947          
Taxation - net 3,550,367                 298,610          

128,891,819             127,186,435

Total liabilities 137,593,735             139,323,011

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13 -                             -                   

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 656,439,403             665,524,734

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Advance against property

Due from related party

Long term investment

Long term deposits 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Advances

Current portion of due from related party

Short term deposit

Other receivables

Short term investment

Cash and bank balances

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

  

14 564,203,898       574,652,120

15 -                        -                         

16 -                        -                         

17 6,924,048            6,516,751             

24,414,434          24,414,434           

595,542,380       605,583,305

18 -                        -                         

19 -                        -                         

20 -                        -                         

21 15,000                 51,001                  

16 17,619,962          17,619,962           

22 2,000,000            2,000,000             

23 4,017,327            3,812,139             

24 1,194,924            1,180,033

25 822,625               51,109                  

25,669,838          24,714,244           

26 35,227,185          35,227,185           

60,897,023          59,941,429           

656,439,403       665,524,734        
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES 27 (27,303,363)

       

(26,062,539)

OTHER EXPENSES 28 (1,059,335)

         
(12,063,495)

(28,362,698)
       

(38,126,034)

OTHER INCOME 29 24,871,368        20,629,713

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (3,491,330)

         
(17,496,321)

FINANCE COST 30 (417,931)

             

(674,537)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (3,909,261)

         

(18,170,858)

TAXATION 31 (3,615,180)

         

2,308,112

LOSS AFTER TAXATION (7,524,441)

         

(15,862,746)

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 32 (2.47) (5.20)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

LOSS AFTER TAXATION (7,524,441)

  

(15,862,746)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / LOSS

                

                

                

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - net of tax 168,386 (2,050,958)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (7,356,055) (17,913,704)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Reversal of revaluation surplus

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Related deferred tax

Related deferred tax

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 237,163-
(68,777)

168,386

-

-

-

-

       (392,424)
               
        

113,803

       

(278,621)

               

(2,496,249)

723,912

(1,772,337)

-
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 33 8,679,569            1,055,619         

Finance cost paid (417,931)              (674,537)           

Income tax paid (2,326,451)           (1,442,803)        

Gratuity paid (199,600)              (376,423)           

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 5,735,587            (1,438,144)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (900,000)              -                     

Interest received 57,050                  239,710            

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6,330,000            6,870,000         

Net cash from investing activities 5,487,050            7,109,710         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term financing (3,364,826)           (3,005,804)        

Short term borrowings - net (7,086,295)           (2,704,340)        

Net cash used in financing activities (10,451,121)         (5,710,144)        

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 771,516                (38,578)             

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 51,109                  89,687               

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 822,625                51,109               

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 - restated 30,524,290        (61,826,249)         575,018,505        543,716,546    

Loss for the year -                      (15,862,746)         -                         (15,862,746)     

Other comprehensive loss for the year -                      (278,621)               (1,772,337)            (2,050,958)        

-                      (16,141,367)         (1,772,337)            (17,913,704)     

-                      2,384,337             (2,384,337)            -                     

-                      -                         398,881                398,881            

Balance as at 30 June 2018 30,524,290        (75,583,279)         571,260,712        526,201,723    

Loss for the year -                      (7,524,441)            -                         (7,524,441)        

Other comprehensive income for the year -                      168,386                -                         168,386            

-                      (7,356,055)            -                         (7,356,055)        

-                      2,022,099             (2,022,099)            -                     

Balance as at 30 June 2019 30,524,290        (80,917,235)         569,238,613        518,845,668    

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

-------------------- (Rupees) --------------------

SHARE 

CAPITAL

TOTAL 

EQUITY

CAPITAL 

RESERVE - 

SURPLUS ON 

REVALUATION 

OF PROPERTY, 

PLANT AND 

EQUIPMENT

REVENUE 

RESERVE - 

ACCUMULATED 

LOSS

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended 30 June 2019

Incrementaldepreciation transferred from surplus on revaluationof property, plant
and equipment to accumulated loss - net of deferred income tax (Note 4)

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended 30 June 2018

Incrementaldepreciation transferred from surplus on revaluationof property, plant
and equipment to accumulated loss - net of deferred income tax (Note 4)

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - adjustment due to change in 
tax rates
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

D.M. Textile Mills Limited is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies 
Act, 2017) and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). PSX vide Notice No. PSX/N-122 dated 06 February 2019 placed 
the Company on defaulters segment with effect from 07 February 2019 due to suspension of production / business operations for a 
continuous period of one year and adverse opinion by the auditors on the issue of going concern. Further, PSX vide Notice No. 
PSX/N-966 dated 06 August 2019 granted extension upto 28 October 2019 to rectify the above stated non-compliances.

The registered office, head office and manufacturing unit of the Company is situated at Westridge, Rawalpindi. 

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, sale and trading of cotton, polyester, viscose and blended yarn. 
However, the board of directors and shareholders of the Company in their meetings held on 27 April 2019 and 31 May 2019 
respectively, resolved that principal line of business of the Company will be to establish warehouses to provide storage facilities on 
proprietary as well as rental basis and / or to undertake real estate development including investment, development, construction, 
purchase, sale, lease and disposal of real estate assets. Further, it was resolved to adopt new name i.e. “D.M. Industries Limited”. 
Management of the Company is in process to complete procedural / legal formalities in this regard.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have 
been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b) Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for property, plant and equipment and 
certain financial instruments which are carried at their fair values and defined benefit plan which is carried at present value.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's 
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application 
of accounting policies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

Estimates with respect to residual values, useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the 
management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any 
change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with a 
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Defined benefit plan 

The cost of the defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions 
about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are 
subject to significant uncertainty.

Inventories
Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices less estimated expenditure to 
make sales.
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Income tax

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgment. It is based on the lifetime 
expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for 
each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

d) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and 
are relevant to the Company

Following standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the 
Company's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018:

· IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'

· IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

· IFRS 15 (Amendments), 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

· Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2014  2016 Cycle

The Company had to change its accounting policies and make certain adjustments without restating prior year results following the 
adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. These are disclosed in note 2.6 and note 2.14. Most of the other amendments listed above did not 
have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.  

e) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to 
the Company

Following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the 
Company's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2019 or later periods: 

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, the 
Company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the 
effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in 
other comprehensive income. The application of the amendment is not likely to have an impact on these financial statements.

IFRS 16 'Lease' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). IFRS 16 specifies how an entity will recognize, 
measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize 
assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors 
continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16 approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its 
predecessor, IAS 17 'Leases'. IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, IFRIC 4 'Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease', SIC-15 
'Operating LeasesIncentives' and SIC-27 'Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease'.  The 
management of the Company is in the process of evaluating the impacts of the aforesaid standard on the Company's financial 
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019) clarify that for the purpose of assessing 
whether a prepayment feature meets the solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') condition, the party exercising the option 
may pay or receive reasonable compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, 
prepayment features with negative compensation do not automatically fail SPPI. The amendments are not likely to have significant 
impact on the Company's financial statements.
IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). The 
interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax 
rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12 'Income Taxes'. It specifically considers: whether tax 
treatments should be considered collectively; assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations; the determination of taxable profit 
(tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and the effect of changes in facts and circumstances. The 
interpretation is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of 
material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS. In addition, the 
IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing general purpose financial statements in 
accordance with IFRS.
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On 12 December 2017, IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2015  2017 Cycle, incorporating amendments to four IFRSs 
more specifically in IFRS 3 'Business Combinations', IFRS 11 'Joint Arrangements', IAS 12 'Income Taxes' and IAS 23 'Borrowing 
Costs'. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019. The amendments have no 
significant impact on the Company's financial statements and have therefore not been analyzed in detail.

On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual Framework. The new 
Framework: re-introduces the terms stewardship and prudence; introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and a new 
liability definition that is likely to be broader than the definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction between a liability and 
an equity instrument; removes from the asset and liability definitions references to the expected flow of economic benefitsthis 
lowers the hurdle for identifying the existence of an asset or liability and puts more emphasis on reflecting uncertainty in 
measurement; discusses historical cost and current value measures, and provides some guidance on how the IASB would go about 
selecting a measurement basis for a particular asset or liability; states that the primary measure of financial performance is profit or 
loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances will the IASB use other comprehensive income and only for income or expenses 
that arise from a change in the current value of an asset or liability; and discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the 
reporting entity and combined financial statements. The Framework is not an IFRS standard and does not override any standard, so 
nothing will change in the short term. The revised Framework will be used in future standard-setting decisions, but no changes will 
be made to current IFRS. Preparers might also use the Framework to assist them in developing accounting policies where an issue 
is not addressed by an IFRS. It is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers that develop an 
accounting policy based on the Framework.

f) Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and not 
considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning 
on or after 01 July 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.
2.2 Employee benefit

The Company operates unfunded unapproved gratuity scheme for permanent employees of the Company, payable on cessation of 
employment. The provision is made on the basis of actuarial valuation to cover the obligation under the scheme for all employees 
eligible to gratuity benefits.

2.3 Taxation

Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of 
income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if 
enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous 
years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred 
tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or 
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is 
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.4 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate of the amount 
can be made.
2.5 Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

Owned 

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at revalued amount less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost of property, plant and equipment consists of historical cost, 
borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable cost of bringing the 
asset to working condition. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss. Capital work-in-progress 
is stated at cost less any recognized impairment loss.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 

reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are 

incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized, in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus 
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Leased

Leases where the Company has substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Assets subject to 
finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease term at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments 
under the lease agreements and the fair value of the leased assets, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The related rental obligation net of finance cost is included in liabilities against assets subject to finance lease. The liabilities are 
classified as current and long term depending upon the timing of payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding. 
The finance cost is charged to statement of profit or loss over the lease term.

Depreciation of assets subject to finance lease is recognized in the same manner as for owned assets. Depreciation of the leased 
assets is charged to statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method so as 
to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the asset over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 14. The depreciation 
on additions is charged from the date the asset is available for use and on deletion up to the date when assets are disposed-off. The 
residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed by the management, at each financial year end and adjusted if impact on 
depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the 
asset is de-recognized.

2.6 IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” from 01 July 2018. The standard introduced new classification and 
measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates and that are solely principal 
and interest. A debt investment shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to both hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates that are solely 
principal and interest as well as selling the asset on the basis of its fair value. All other financial assets are classified and measured at 
fair value through profit or loss unless the Company makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses 
on equity instruments in other comprehensive income. Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be irrevocably designated 
as measured at fair value through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an accounting mismatch. For financial liabilities 
designated at fair value through profit or loss, the standard requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the 
Company's own credit risk to be presented in other comprehensive income (unless it would create an accounting mismatch). New 
simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting treatment with the risk management 
activities of the Company. New impairment requirements use an 'expected credit loss' ('ECL') model to recognize an allowance. 
Impairment is measured using a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly 
since initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. For receivables, a simplified approach to measuring 
expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance is available.

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 without restating the prior year results. Key changes in accounting policies resulting from 
application of IFRS 9 are as follows:

i. Recognition of financial instruments 

The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are originated. Financial liabilities are initially 
recognized on the trade date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.



ii. Classification and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” for the 
classification and measurement of financial liabilities. However, it replaces the previous IAS 39 categories for financial 
assets i.e. Loans and receivables, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), available for sale and held to maturity with the 
categories such as amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI).

Investments and other financial assets

a) Classification

From 01 July 2018, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

· those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), 
and

· those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For 
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account 
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and 
only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of 
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely 
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash 
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal 
and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other 
income / (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item 
in the statement of profit or loss. 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash 
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses), interest 
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is de-recognized, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and 
recognized in other income / (other expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income/ (other expenses) and impairment 
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is 
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or loss and presented net within other income / (other expenses) in the 
period in which it arises. 
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Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments quoted in an active market, the 
fair value corresponds to a market price (level 1). For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value is 
determined using valuation techniques including reference to recent arm's length market transactions or transactions involving 
financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible 
extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3). 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment losses 
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other changes in 
fair value. 

Fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other income / (other expenses) 
in the statement of profit or loss as applicable. 

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive 
payments is established.

Financial liabilities 

a) Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is 
classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial 
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange 
gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in profit or loss.

iii. Impairment of financial assets

From 01 July 2018, the Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt 
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk. 

For trade debts and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected 
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. 

iv. De-recognition

a) Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not 
retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such de-recognized financial assets that is created or retained by the 
Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of financial position when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

v. Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legal 
enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

vi. Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 requires that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy and to apply a 
more qualitative and forward-looking approach to assessing hedge effectiveness.

There is no impact of the said change on these financial statements as there is no hedge activity carried on by the Company during 
the year ended 30 June 2019.



Vii. Impacts of adoption of IFRS 9 on these financial statements as on 01 July 2018

On 01 July 2018, the Company's management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets held by the 
Company at the date of initial application of IFRS 9 (01 July 2018) and has classified its financial instruments into appropriate IFRS 9 
categories. The main effects resulting from this reclassification are as follows:

Reclassifications of financial instruments on adoption of IFRS 9

As on 01 July 2018, the classification and measurement of financial instruments of the Company were as follows:

1.1 Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as 
follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Useable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered obsolete are 
carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade

Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

(i) For raw materials: Weighted average basis.
(ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including a portion of production

 Overheads.

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stock is valued at net 
realizable value.
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Measurement category Carrying amounts 

 
Original New Original New Difference 

 
(IAS 39) (IFRS 9) Rupees 

      
Non-current financial 
assets      

            

Long term investment Held to maturity 
Amortized cost 6,516,751 6,516,751 

 
- 

Long term deposits 
Loans and 
receivables Amortized cost 24,414,434 24,414,434 - 

      Current financial assets 
 

    
Advances 

Loans and 
receivables Amortized cost 51,001 51,001 - 

Current portion of due from 
related party 

Loans and 
receivables Amortized cost 17,619,962 17,619,962 - 

Short term deposits 
Loans and 
receivables Amortized cost 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 

Other receivables 
Loans and 
receivables Amortized cost 33,500 33,500 - 

Short term investments Held to maturity Amortized cost 1,180,033 1,180,033 - 

Cash and bank balances 
Loans and 
receivables 

Amortized cost 
 

 
51,109 

 
51,109 

  

 
  

   
Non-current financial 
liabilities 

  
   

 
  

   
Long term financing Amortized cost Amortized cost 1,766,260 1,766,260 - 

 
  

   
Current financial 
liabilities 

  
   

 
  

   
Trade and other payables Amortized cost Amortized cost 57,784,198 57,784,198 - 
Accrued mark-up Amortized cost Amortized cost 20,767,825 20,767,825 - 
Short term borrowings Amortized cost Amortized cost 11,890,030 11,890,030 - 
Liability against assets 
subject  

Amortized cost 
Amortized cost 658,531 658,531  

Current portion of long 
term financing 

Amortized cost 
Amortized cost 3,364,826 3,364,826 - 

Unclaimed dividend Amortized cost Amortized cost 144,947 144,947 - 
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Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.

1.2 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method, less any allowance for expected credit losses. Trade receivables generally do not include amounts over due by 365 days.

The Company has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss 
allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

1.3 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the 
proceeds and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the 
effective interest method.

1.4  Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective qualifying 
assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are recognized in 
statement of profit or loss.

1.5  Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost.

1.6  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term 
highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in values.

1.7  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity 
as a deduction, net of tax.

1.8 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 from 01 July 2018. The standard provides a single comprehensive model for revenue 
recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity shall recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 
goods or services. The standard introduced a new contract-based revenue recognition model with a measurement approach that is 
based on an allocation of the transaction price. This is described further in the accounting policies below. Credit risk is presented 
separately as an expense rather than adjusted against revenue. Contracts with customers are presented in Company's statement 
of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship between the Company's 
performance and the customer's payment. Customer acquisition costs and costs to fulfill a contract can, subject to certain criteria, 
be capitalized as an asset and amortized over the contract period.

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 by applying the modified retrospective approach according to which the Company is not 
required to restate the prior year results. Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are as follows:

i) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Company: identifies the contract with a 
customer; identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into account 
estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance 
obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognizes 
revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or 
services promised.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates 
and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined 
using either the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a 
constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the 



amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated 
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are initially 
recognized as deferred revenue in the form of a separate refund liability.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is generally 
at the time of delivery.

Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortized 
cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend

Dividend on equity investments is recognized when right to receive the dividend is established.

Other revenue

Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.

ii) Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the 
customer pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.  

iii) Customer acquisition costs

Customer acquisition costs are capitalized as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer 
and are expected to be recovered. Customer acquisition costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained or which are not otherwise 
recoverable from a customer are expensed as incurred to profit or loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract where the contract 
term is less than one year is immediately expensed to profit or loss.

iv) Customer fulfillment costs

Customer fulfillment costs are capitalized as an asset when all the following are met: (i) the costs relate directly to the contract or 
specifically identifiable proposed contract; (ii) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used to satisfy 
future performance obligations; and (iii) the costs are expected to be recovered. Customer fulfillment costs are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

v) Right of return assets

Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who may 
exercise their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was 
previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment.

vi) Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received consideration 
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the 
payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the 
contract.

vii) Refund liabilities

Refund liabilities are recognized where the Company receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some, or all, of 
that consideration to the customer. A refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received or receivable for which the 
Company does not expect to be entitled and is updated at the end of each reporting period for changes in circumstances. Historical 
data is used across product lines to estimate such returns at the time of sale based on an expected value methodology.
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viii) Impacts of adoption of IFRS 15 on these financial statements as on 01 July 2018

The Company has applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach for transition. This approach requires entities to 
recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of unappropriated profit in the 
period of initial application. Comparative prior year periods would not be adjusted. The application of IFRS 15 does not have any 
significant impact on the revenue recognition of the Company as the Company ceased its operations since 2014. Therefore, the 
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of unappropriated profit in the period of 
initial application is Rupees Nil.

1.9 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Any directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in the statement of profit or 
loss as incurred. They are subsequently remeasured at fair value on regular basis and at each reporting date as a minimum, with all 
their gains and losses, realized and unrealized, recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

1.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is 
recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in 
statement of profit or loss except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against the related revaluation surplus to 
the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset. 

1.11  Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the period 
in which the dividends are declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board 
of Directors.

1.12  Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legal 
enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

1.13  Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale transaction 
rather than continuous use. These are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

1.14 Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
year.

1.15 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company. Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes certain.

1.16 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. 
In the event that the outflow of resources associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow 
can be reliably estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements.

3 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2018 2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

2,952,429         29,524,290      29,524,290         

100,000            1,000,000        1,000,000            

3,052,429         30,524,290      30,524,290         3,052,429             

(Number of shares)

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 
fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 
issued as fully paid bonus shares

2,952,429             

100,000                

2019
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4

Opening balance 571,260,712    575,018,505       

Deferred tax adjustment due to change in tax rate 8.1 -                    398,881               

Reversal of surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net 14 -                    (2,496,249)          
Related deferred income tax liability 8.1 -                    723,912               

-                    (1,772,337)          

(2,848,026)       (3,358,222)          
Related deferred income tax liability 8.1 825,927            973,885               

(2,022,099)       (2,384,337)          

569,238,613    571,260,712       

5 LONG TERM FINANCING

Faysal Bank Limited - secured

Opening balance 5.1 5,131,086        8,136,890            

Add: Effect of fair value adjustment 235,174            444,196               
5,366,260        8,581,086            

Less: Repaid during the year 3,600,000        3,450,000            

1,766,260        5,131,086            

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 12 1,766,260        3,364,826            

Closing Balance -                    1,766,260            

5.1

2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

6 LIABILITY AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Future minimum lease payments 658,531            658,531               

Less: Unamortized finance charges -                    -                        

Present value of future minimum lease payments 658,531            658,531               

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 12 658,531            658,531               

-                    -                        

6.1

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'it has been stated at present value using effective interest
rate of 6.52% per annum.

These are secured against registered hypothecation charge of Rupees 50 million, second supplement agreement of
hypothecation on all future and current assets, stocks of raw material, work in process, finished goods, plant and machinery,
equipment tools and stores and spares.

It represents last installmentpayable to the lessor under the settlementagreement. Taxes, repairs and insurance costs are to be
borne by the Company. It is secured against charge on leased assets and personal guarantees of sponsor directors.

CAPITAL RESERVE - SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The Company entered into settlement agreement with Faysal Bank Limited. Pursuant to the agreement, short term borrowings
including related accrued mark-up were reduced to Rupees 17.544 million. The Company paid down payment of Rupees 4.044
million. Remaining amount is interest free and is payable in 48 monthly installments (12 installments of Rupees 250,000, 12
installmentsof Rupees 275,000 and 24 installmentsof Rupees 300,000) commenced from January 2016. In case of default, the
settlement agreement or any of its arrangement shall stand cancelled / withdrawn. Consequently, the Bank will be entitled to
recover outstanding amount as per books of ledger.

Transferred to accumulated loss in respect of incremental depreciation

charged during the year

7 EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT BENEFIT

7.1 Liability recognized in the statement of financial position

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 10,808,751      10,611,500         

Benefits due but not paid shown under current liabilities 9 (7,453,107)       (7,481,707)          
3,355,644        3,129,793            

The latest actuarial valuationwas carried out as at 30 June 2019, using the projected unit credit method.The amountsrecognized

in financial statements are determined as follows:
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2019 2018
NOTE Rupees Rupees

7.2 Movement in liability recognized in the statement of financial position

At the beginning of the year 10,611,500      10,063,175         
Charge for the year 634,014            532,324               
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income (237,163)          392,424               
Benefit paid during the year (199,600)          (376,423)              

10,808,751      10,611,500         

7.3 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

At the beginning of the year 3,129,793        2,748,145            
Benefits due but not paid 7,481,707        7,315,030            
Service cost 360,028            352,771               
Interest cost for the year 273,986            179,553               
Benefit paid during the year (199,600)          (376,423)              
Charge to other comprehensive income (237,163)          392,424               
Benefits due but not paid (7,453,107)       (7,481,707)          
At the end of the year 3,355,644        3,129,793            

7.4 Amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 360,028            352,771               
Interest cost for the year 273,986            179,553               

634,014            532,324               

7.5 Amount recognized in statement of comprehensive income

Actuarial loss due to experience adjustments (237,163)          392,424               

7.6 Allocation of charge for the year

Administrative and general expenses 27.1 634,014            532,324               

7.7 Principal actuarial assumptions used 

Discount rate 12.50% 9.00%

Expected rate of increase in salary 11.50% 8.00%

Average expected remaining working life of employees 7 Year 8 Year

Average duration of liability 6 Years 7 Years

7.8 Sensitivity analysis

Discount Rate + 1 % 3,088,928        2,854,537            

Discount Rate  - 1 % 3,656,474        3,442,704            

Salary growth rate + 1 % 3,656,474        3,442,704            

Salary growth rate - 1 % 3,084,385        2,849,715            

7.9 The expected gratuity expense for next financial year is Rupees 785,655.

7.10 Risks associated with the gratuity scheme

8 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation 1,536,825        2,542,235            
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 9,043,818        9,869,745            

10,580,643      12,411,980         
Deductible temporary differences

Provision for gratuity (3,134,538)       (3,077,335)          

Liability against assets subject to finance lease (41,583)             (35,872)                

Allowance for expected credit losses (126,452)          (126,452)              

Provision against doubtful advances (40,168)             (40,168)                

Provision against obsolete stores, spare parts and loose tools (1,834,928)       (1,834,928)          

Provision against obsolescence of raw material (56,702)             (56,702)                

(5,234,371)       (5,171,457)          

5,346,272        7,240,523            

The gratuity scheme is a defined benefit scheme with benefits based on last drawn salary. Therefore,the liabilities of the scheme
are sensitive to the salary increase.

This comprises of following:

The gratuity scheme is an unfunded scheme. There is no minimum funding requirement for a gratuity scheme which leads to
relatively less secured gratuity benefit. The gratuity benefit liability reflected in the Company accounts provides a reasonable
securityof the accrued rights because it is likely that the accrued gratuitybenefits could be considered as high priority debt in case
of insolvency of the sponsor.
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9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors - un-secured 46,583,857      46,913,934         

Advance rental income 5,008,335        4,479,010            

Advances from customers 1,743,024        1,743,024            

Accrued liabilities 24,008,676      18,573,726         

Withholding income tax payable 5,775,355        5,767,465            

Employees' retirement benefit due but not paid 7.1 7,453,107        7,481,707            

Security deposits against rent 9.1 6,627,800        5,102,800            

97,200,154      90,061,666         

9.1

10 ACCRUED MARK-UP

11 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From related parties: 11.1

Chief Executive Officer (C.E.O) 3,803,735        8,450,030            

Close family member of C.E.O. -                    1,400,000            

Director -                    2,040,000            

3,803,735        11,890,030         

Others 11.1 1,000,000        -                        

4,803,735        11,890,030         

11.1

It represents accrued mark-up on short term borrowings from Faysal Bank Limited which have been converted into long term

financing as more fully explained in Note 5.1. According to the settlementagreement, this will be written off upon completion of

payments under the aforesaid agreement.

These are interest free and unsecuredloans obtained by the Company to meet day to day expenses. Repaymentterms and other

conditions of these loans are yet to be finalized.

This represents security deposits received from tenants of the Company. Tenants have given the Company a right to utilize

deposits in ordinary course of business.

2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

8.1 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:

At beginning of the year 7,240,523        14,855,512         

Recognized in statement of profit or loss:

Accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assets (1,005,410)       (5,481,407)          

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 4 (825,927)          (973,885)              

Liability against assets subject to finance lease (5,711)               (7,943)                  

Provision for gratuity (125,980)          55,421                 

Allowance for expected credit losses -                    4,360                   

Provision against doubtful advances -                    (40,168)                

Provision against obsolete stores, spare parts and loose tools -                    63,273                 

Provision against obsolescence of raw material -                    1,956                   

31 (1,963,028)       (6,378,393)          

Recognized in statement of comprehensive income:

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 68,777              (113,803)              

Reversal of revaluation surplus - net 4 -                    (723,912)              

68,777              (837,715)              

Recognized in surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment:

Effect of change in tax rate 4 -                    (398,881)              

5,346,272        7,240,523            

8.2 Deferred income tax asset of Rupees 43.596 million (2018: Rupees 58.710 million) on available tax losses has not been
recognized in these financial statements as the temporary differences are not expected to reverse in foreseeable futurebecause
taxable profits will not be probably available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 
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2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

12 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 5 1,766,260        3,364,826            

Finance lease - over due 6 658,531            658,531               
2,424,791        4,023,357            

13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1 Contingencies

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

For the tax year 2010, assessment order dated 20 February 2011 was passed under section 122(1) read with section
122(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by the Deputy  Commissioner Inland Revenue, whereby demand of tax amounting 
to Rupees 4.223 million was created. The Company filed an appeal on 11 May 2011 before Commissioner InlandRevenue
(Appeals) and the case was decided in favor of the Company through order dated 29 December 2011. However, the
department filed appeal against decision of Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenuewho remanded back the case to the assessing officer. No provision has been made in these financial statements
as the Company is hoping a favorable outcome.

The Company filed sales tax refundapplication with the Federal Board of Revenue.On scrutinyof the refundclaims filed by
the Company, discrepancies were foundand a show cause notice dated 07 April 2015 was issued to the Company. Deputy
Commissioner InlandRevenue(Refund)vide order dated 04 August 2015 rejected the reply of the Company and sales tax
refunds claim amounting to Rupees 2.46 million were also rejected. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) where the case is still pending. No provision has been made in these financial
statements as the Company is hopeful for favorable outcome.

Guaranteeof Rupees 7.142 million (2018: Rupees 7.142 million) has been given by the banks of the Company to Islamabad
Electric Supply Company against sanction of load.

On 26 January 2006, Collector of Customs (Appraisement) directed the Company to pay duties and taxes amounting to
Rupees 19.41 million against import of textile machinery during 2001 to 2004. The Company applied to Member Legal,
Federal Board of Revenue Islamabad to allow relief by payment of custom duty @ 5% of dutiable value of machinery
amounting to Rupees 3.49 million under amnesty scheme announced by the Federal Government. Federal Board of
Revenueallowed relief to the Company under the amnesty scheme. The Company paid Rupees 3.49 million to the Custom
Department. However, being aggrieved, Collector of Custom filed an appeal before the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax
Appellate Tribunal, which was decided in favor of the Company. Collector of Customs, Appraisement filed special custom
reference before Sindh High Court, Karachi against the order of Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunalwhere
the case is still pending. No provision of the remaining amount of Rupees 15.92 million has been made in these financial
statements as the Company is hopeful for favorable outcome.

Faysal Bank Limited filed a suit before Banking Court Islamabad against the Company for recovery of outstanding loans and 
other charges amounting to Rupees 21.270 million. Due to settlement agreement dated 29 December 2015 as more fully
explained in note 5.1 and on request of both the parties, Banking Court Islamabad issued sine die adjournment / consent
decree of recovery suit.

The Company filed an appeal on 04 April 2011, before Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, against demand of property
tax amountingto Rupees 5.51 million raised by InspectorMilitary Lands and Cantonments,Rawalpindi. Being aggrieved on
decision of Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, the Company filed appeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan,
whereby, the case has been remanded back to Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench. No provision has been made in 
these financial statements as the Company is hopeful for favorable outcome.

On 01 February 2011, the Company filed an appeal before Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench against the recovery of
electricity duty amounting to Rupees 19.07 million on self generation charged by Electric Inspector Islamabad Region. The
Court has issued notices to the respondents to file comments. Pending the outcome of this case no provision has been
made in these financial statements as the Company, based on advice of legal advisor, is hopeful for favorable outcome.

Sui NorthernGas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) Islamabad demanded arrears of Rupees 10.405 million for the period from
November 2006 to November 2007 due to doubt on accuracy of meter. The Company filed a case in the Court of Senior
Civil Judge Islamabad on 18 December 2007. SNGPL encashed the bank guarantee amounting to Rupees 15.293 million
issued to it by NIB Bank Limited on behalf of the Company. However, Civil Judge Islamabad rejected SNGPL claim for
excessive billing vide order dated 18 December 2012. SNGPL filed appeal before Additional District and Session Judge,
Islamabad. Additional District and Session Judge, Islamabad vide order dated 18 April 2018 rejected the plaint by stating
that an alternate remedy is available to the Company to agitate its grievances before the Oil and Gas RegulatoryAuthority
(OGRA) authorities under section 11 of the OGRA Ordinance, 2002. The Company has not yet filed an appeal before
OGRA. No provision has been made in these financial statements as the Company, based on advice of legal advisor, is
hopeful for favorable outcome.

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

13.2 Commitments Nil Nil
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14.1

14.2

Rupees

Freehold land         440,683,912 

Buildings on freehold land           21,443,300 

Non factory buildings             7,286,254 

Plant and machinery             1,649,838 

Factory equipment                202,002 

Electric installations             1,546,720 
Plant and machinery - leased                541,462 

14.3

02 June 2016

The revaluationof plant and machinery,electric installationsand factoryequipment was carried out on 02 May 2018, while freehold

land and buildings on freehold land were revalued on 02 June 2016 by an independent valuer Messrs Danish Enterprises and

Construction on the basis of depreciated replacement value method. Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated

depreciation and book value of revalued property, plant and equipment would have been as follows:

02 May 2018

Description Valuation date

02 June 2016

02 June 2016

02 May 2018

02 May 2018

02 May 2018

Forced sale value of property, plant and equipment is given below: 

Detail of property, plant and equipment exceeding book value of Rupees 500,000 disposed of during the year is as follows:

2018

Historical cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Book value Book value

Freehold land 94,892            -                        94,892              94,892                   

Buildings on free hold land 38,804,549      36,172,467            2,632,082         2,924,536               

Non factory buildings 12,505,284      7,526,085              4,979,199         5,241,262               

Plant and machinery 108,655,000    82,394,457            26,260,543        46,487,293             

Factory equipment 7,375,169        6,836,434              538,735            598,594                  

Electric installations 14,911,234      12,763,183            2,148,051         2,386,723               

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2,312,105        2,037,487              274,618            305,131                  

Vehicles 7,849,690        6,601,167              1,248,523         491,750                  

Plant and machinery - leased 3,778,900        1,702,497              2,076,403         2,185,687               

196,286,823    156,033,777          40,253,046        60,715,868             

Description 

2019

------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------

Description QTY
Cost / 

revalued 
amount 

Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
value

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / 
(loss)

Particulars of purchasers

Plant and Machinery:

Ring frame 4 4,605,947    2,915,884     1,690,063 1,150,000  (540,063)  Negotiation Murtaza Javed, Faisalabad

Simplex frame 4 4,611,777    3,506,919     1,104,858 1,100,000  (4,858)     Negotiation Murtaza Javed, Faisalabad

Card machine A-168 China 7 3,681,461    2,911,461     770,000    770,000    -          Negotiation Murtaza Javed, Faisalabad

Card machine A-168 China 7 3,684,850    2,914,850     770,000    770,000    -          Negotiation Murtaza Javed, Faisalabad

Card machine MK-6 3 636,268       186,268        450,000    450,000    -          Negotiation Muhammad Tahir, Faisalabad

Card machine FA-225 2 1,860,146    1,360,146     500,000    500,000    -          Negotiation Muhammad Tahir, Faisalabad

Card machine DK-760 2 1,818,271    1,318,271     500,000    500,000    -          Negotiation Muhammad Tahir, Faisalabad

Card machine DK-760 3 3,236,817    2,486,817     750,000    750,000    -          Negotiation Muhammad Tahir, Faisalabad

24,135,537  17,600,616   6,534,921 5,990,000  (544,921)  

Aggregate of other items of
property, plant and equipment
with individual book values not
exceeding Rupees 500,000 

1,303,813    984,399        319,414    340,000    20,586     

25,439,350  18,585,015   6,854,335 6,330,000  (524,335)  

 ------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------

Mode of 
disposal

14.4 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land & building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

 Total Area 

(Acres) 

 Covered Area

 (Sqr feet) 

Westridge, Industrial Area, Rawalpindi 4.13                  147,196               

2.84                  131,413               

Land 2.58                  -                        

Manufacturing facilities

Location Usage of Immovable Property

Residential and offices



15 ADVANCE AGAINST PROPERTY

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

16 DUE FROM RELATED PARTY

Due from C.E.O 17,619,962      17,619,962         

Less: Current portion shown under current assets (17,619,962)     (17,619,962)        

-                    -                        

17 LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Amortized cost 1,142,000        1,142,000            

This represents term deposit receipts of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited for the period of five years ending in February 2022,
carrying effective interest at the rate of 6.25% per annum. It is under lien with the bank against guarantee given on behalf of the

Company.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan filed an appeal before the Islamabad High Court (IHC), Islamabad,dated

13 September 2018 for execution of IHC decision dated 16 November 2017 to appoint statutoryauditors to conduct a special

audit to calculate the amountof profit whichshould have been earned on the amount of Rupees 51.150 million, if invested with any

schedule bank on daily product basis in the relevantperiod, and further requested the IHC to send notice to Lahore High Court,

Lahore, for release of the property. The matter is pending adjudication.

The Bank of Punjab filed an appeal before the Islamabad High Court, Islamabad to set-aside orders dated 03 May 2016 and 16

November 2017. The matter is pending adjudication.

The Board of Directors in the meeting held on 23 April 2014, after getting valuationat forced sale value of Rupees 72.007 million

of said property from NAKMS Associates (Private) Limited, resolved that the right in property along with fixtures and fittings to be

offered to the C.E.O on the basis of "first right of refusal" at the fixed floor price of Rupees 75.00 million.The Board furtherdecided

that an amount of Rupees 48.570 million be adjusted from interest free loan given by C.E.O and his close familymembers to the

Company and the balance amountto be paid in three equal annualinstallmentsof Rupees 8.810 million commencing from 01 May

2015. Accordingly, agreement was made between the Company and the C.E.O under the directions given by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

However, the C.E.O in the case proceedings before the Islamabad High Court, Islamabad on 03 May 2016 has submitted to

transfer the property in the name of the Company withinsixtydays there from. The C.E.O filed a petition before the IslamabadHigh

Court to seek relief on the grounds that the said property has already been attached in the cases titled The Bank of Punjabversus

Bilal Fibers Limited and The Bank of Punjab versus Bilal Textiles (Private) Limited wherein the C.E.O was a guarantor. Meanwhile, 
the Board of directors and the shareholders in their meetings held on 09 October 2016 and 31 October 2016 respectively resolved 

to reverse the transactionof sale of property to C.E.O, subject to completion of legal formalities and in accordance with rules / law /

procedures.

The Company filed a suit before the court of Senior Civil Judge (west), Islamabaddated 17 October 2017 against the C.E.O. while

making Securities and ExchangeCommission of Pakistan and Capital Development Authorityparties to the case for directions to

transfer the property in the name of the Company, which is pending adjudication.

The C.E.O also filed an appeal under section 485 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 read with Section 34 of the

Securities and ExchangeCommission of Pakistan Act, 1997 before the Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench whereby stay order

was granted to suspend the operation of above said impugned order. The Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, in its interim

order dated 06 February 2015, granted adjournmentwith the directions not to transfer / alienate the property / undertaking of the

Company meanwhile.Further, the court, throughits order dated 09 December 2015 transferred the case to Islamabad High Court,

Islamabad.

An amountof Rupees 51.150 million was given by the Company as advance against purchase of property. The property could not

be transferred in the Company's name due to the want of completion of legal formalities. With reference to this advance, the

Director (Enforcement) of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide his Order dated 29 November 2007

imposed a penalty of Rupees 100,000 on each of the director except one (nominee NIT) of the Company for contraventionof

Section 196(2j) of the repealed Companies Ordinance,1984. Furtherdirections were given undersection 473 for transferringthe

property in the name of the Company within thirty days from the Order date. The Chief Executive Officer (C.E.O) of the Company

filed a revision application with the Appellate Bench of SECP under section 484 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984

against this Order on 10 January 2008, where the Appellate Bench decided not to interfere with the impugned order. 

It represents receivable from C.E.O against sale of property as more fullyexplained in Note 15. The maximum amount due from

C.E.O at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 17.620 million (2018: Rupees 17.620 million). 

Meanwhile, the Islamabad High Court, Islamabad vide its order dated 16 November 2017, reduced the penalty from Rupees

100,000 to Rupees 50,000 to be paid by each director of the Company within the period of thirty days.

The Company also filed an appeal before the Lahore High Court, Lahore Bench in May 2018 for detachment of the property, so

that property can be transferred in the name of the Company, which is pending adjudication.
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2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

18 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 495,402            495,402               

Spare parts 5,792,648        5,792,648            

Loose tools 39,287              39,287                 

6,327,337        6,327,337            

Less: Provision against obsolete stores, spare parts and loose tools (6,327,337)       (6,327,337)          

-                    -                        

19 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material 195,525            195,525               

Less: Provision against obsolescence of raw material (195,525)          (195,525)              

-                    -                        

20 TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured

Considered doubtful 436,040            436,040               

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (436,040)          (436,040)              

-                    -                        

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

21 ADVANCES

Unsecured

Employees - interest free 15,000              51,001                 

Employees - interest free 25,110              25,110                 

Suppliers 113,402            113,402               

153,512            189,513               

Less: Provision against doubtful advances (138,512)          (138,512)              

15,000              51,001                 

22 SHORT TERM DEPOSIT

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

23 OTHER RECEIVABLES  

Considered good:

Sales tax refundable 3,849,160        3,643,972            

Export rebate and claims 134,667            134,667               

Others 33,500              33,500                 

4,017,327        3,812,139            

24 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Amortized cost

Considered good:

This represents fixed deposit certificate of Habib MetropolitanBank Limited for a period of one year. Returnon this certificate will

be paid on maturityat the effective rate of 6.25% (2018: 5.25%) per annum.It is under lien with the bank against guaranteegiven

on behalf of the Company.

Considered doubtful:

It represents advance given to Messrs Fauji Foundation for purchaseof mill. The amount is considered good as the Court decided

the case in favor of the Company on 10 June 1999. Fauji Foundation however, filed appeal before Honorable Lahore High Court,

Rawalpindi Bench, against the aforesaid order, and provided bank guaranteeof Rupees 2 million to the Court. HonorableLahore

High Court remanded the case to the Civil Court who decided against the Company. The Company has filed petition in Lahore

High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, where the case is still pending.



2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank:

On saving accounts 25.1 11,839              8,972                   

On current accounts 82,709              27,273                 

94,548              36,245                 

Cash in hand 728,077            14,864                 

822,625            51,109                 

25.1

26 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Freehold land        28,750,000           28,750,000 

Non-factory building          6,477,185             6,477,185 

       35,227,185           35,227,185 

26.1

Non-recurring fair value measurements

27 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1 8,777,452        9,201,790            

Rent, rates and taxes 6,456,283        1,211,720            

Printing and stationery 145,854            163,765               

Fuel and power 1,970,570        2,047,106            

Postage and telephone 324,760            307,167               

Travelling and conveyance 438,825            558,482               

Vehicles' running 1,527,621        1,318,653            

Repair and maintenance 607,965            3,560,675            

Miscellaneous 1,015,733        146,601               

Entertainment 321,620            337,916               

Advertisement 374,355            165,657               

Legal and professional 285,600            722,500               

Fees and subscription 562,838            449,098               

Depreciation 14 4,493,887        5,871,409            

27,303,363      26,062,539         

27.1 This includes employees' retirement benefits of Rupees 634,014 (2018: Rupees 532,324).

28 OTHER EXPENSES

Auditor's remuneration 28.1 535,000            535,000               
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 14 -                    6,024,026            
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 14.3 524,335            5,365,957            

-                    138,512               

1,059,335        12,063,495         

28.1 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee 455,000            455,000               

Half yearly review 55,000              55,000                 

Other certification 25,000              25,000                 

535,000            535,000               

These represent freehold land measuring approximately7.19 kanal comprising open area and old worker quarters having31,877
square feet covered area, on the extreme back side of the mills situated at Westridge IndustrialArea, Rawalpindi. This freehold
land and non-factory building is expected to be sold within a year. An active search is underway for the buyer.
The forced sale value of freehold land and non-factory building is Rupees 24,437,500 and Rupees 9,187,735 respectively.

Provision against doubtful advances

The balances in saving accounts carry interest at the rate of 4.50% to 10.25% (2018: 5.50%) per annum.

Freehold land and non-factorybuilding classified as held for sale was measured at the lower of their carrying amountand fair value
less costs to sell at the time of the reclassification. The fair value of freehold land and non-factorybuildings was determined by
Danish Enterprises and Construction. This is a level 2 measurement as per the fair value hierarchyset out in note 40. The fair
valuation of freehold land and non-factory building classified as held for sale was done by the independent valuer, Danish
Enterprises and Construction on 21 February 2017.
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2019 2018

NOTE Rupees Rupees

33 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation (3,909,261)       (18,170,858)        

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation 4,493,887        5,871,409            

Impairment of property, plant and equipment -                    6,024,026            

Provision for gratuity 634,014            532,324               

Provision against doubtful advances -                    138,512               

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 524,335            5,365,957            

Return on investment (479,238)          (659,049)              
Finance cost 417,931            674,537               

Long outstanding liabilities written back (347,397)          (435,346)              

Working capital changes 33.1 7,345,298        1,714,107            

8,679,569        1,055,619            

33.1 Working capital changes

Decrease / (increase) in current assets:

Advances 36,001              (6,078)                  
Other receivables (205,188)          (257,100)              

(169,187)          (263,178)              

Increase in trade and other payables 7,514,485        1,977,285            

7,345,298        1,714,107            

33.2 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

29 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on deposits with banks 730                   320                       

Return on investment 479,238            659,049               

Long outstanding liabilities written back 347,397            435,346               

827,365            1,094,715            

Income from non-financial assets

Scrap sale -                    1,400,000            
Rental income 24,044,003      18,134,998         

24,044,003      19,534,998         

24,871,368      20,629,713         

30 FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term financing 235,174            444,196               

Bank charges and commission 182,757            230,341               

417,931            674,537               

31 TAXATION

Current

Current year 31.1 5,578,208        4,352,400            
Prior year -                    (282,119)              

5,578,208        4,070,281            

Deferred 8.1 (1,963,028)       (6,378,393)          

3,615,180        (2,308,112)          

31.1

32 2019 2018

Loss attributable to ordinary shares (Rupees) (7,524,441)       (15,862,746)        

Weighted average number of ordinary shares     (Numbers) 3,052,429        3,052,429            

Loss per share (Rupees) (2.47)                 (5.20)                    

There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share which is based on:

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Provision for currenttax represents tax on rental income only because of gross loss for the year and in view of available tax losses
of Rupees 150.330 million (2018: Rupees 202.448 million). Consequently, tax expense reconciliation is not being presented.
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36 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Spindles installed -                    2,064                   

-                    5,588,830            

-                    -                        

2019 2018
37

Number of employees as at 30 June                       26                          29 

Average number of employees during the year                       26                          28 

(Kilograms)

The Company disposed of significant portion of plant and machinery during the year.

100% plant capacity converted into 20s countbased on 3 shifts per day for

1095 shifts (2018: 1095 shifts)

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

(Numbers)

Actual production converted into 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for 

1095 shifts (2018: 1095 shifts)

Long term 

financing

Balance as at 01 July 2018 5,131,086          11,890,030    144,947            17,166,063         

Repayment of long term financing (3,364,826)         -                  -                    (3,364,826)          

Short term borrowings - net -                      (7,086,295)     -                    (7,086,295)          

1,766,260          4,803,735      144,947            6,714,942            

34 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND DIRECTORS

2019 2018 2018

Managerial remuneration 2,400,000          2,400,000      496,800            442,800               

Allowance

Utilities 1,087,882          691,071         55,200              49,200                 

3,487,882          3,091,071 552,000 492,000 

Number of persons 1 1 1 1

Chief Executive Officer

-----------------------------Rupees------------------------------

Directors

Short term 

borrowings

TotalUnclaimed 

dividend

Liabilities from financing activities

-------------------Rupees-------------------

2019

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration including certain benefits to the chief
executive officer and directors of the Company are as follows:

34.1

34.2

34.3

35 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Mr. Habib Ullah - C.E.O

Loan obtained during the year 888,000            1,853,000            

Adjustment / payment against outstanding balance 5,534,295        1,724,714            

Mrs. Riffat Habib - Close family member of C.E.O.

Loan obtained during the year -                    1,400,000            

Payment against outstanding balance 1,400,000        -                        

Mr. Sami Ullah - Director

Loan obtained during the year 65,000              2,115,000            

Adjustment / payment against outstanding balance 2,105,000        75,000                 

Rental income 242,000            20,000                 

The related parties comprise of associated undertakings and key management personnel. The Company in the normal course of

business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties other than those which

have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

The Company also provides to Chief Executive Officer free use of the Company's maintained car, residential telephone,medical

facility and residence to 1 (2018: 1) director.

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors' meeting fee paid to 1 (2018: 1) director was
Rupees 20,000 (2018: Rupees 20,000).

No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

38.1

(a)

Financial risk factors

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

(ii) Other price risk

(iii) Interest rate risk

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Investments 8,118,972

        

7,696,784

            

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances - saving accounts 11,839

              

8,972

                   

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or futurecash flows of a financial instrumentwill fluctuatebecause of changes in

foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from futurecommercial transactions or receivables and payables that

exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The

Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other

price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, use of derivative financial instrumentsand non derivative financial instruments

and investment of excess liquidity. 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currencyrisk, other price risk and interest

rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuatesby 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant,loss after taxation

for the year would have been Rupees 118 (2018: Rupees 90) lower / higher, mainlyas a result of higher / lower interest on

saving accounts.

The Company is not exposed to currency risk as it has no receivables and payables denominated in foreign currency.

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or futurecash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are

caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument 

traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity and commodity price risks.

This represents the risk that the fair value or futurecash flows of a financial instrumentwill fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates.

The Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets except term deposit receipts. The Company's interest

rate risk arises from investmentsand bank balances in saving accounts. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the

Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate

risk.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Companys interest bearing financial instruments was:

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair valuethroughprofit or loss. Therefore,

a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.



2019 2018

Short term Long term Agency Rupees Rupees

Banks

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 2,822                 2,822                  

Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 1,735                 1,063                  

Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 2,840                 2,313                  

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 6,219                 6,641                  

MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 5,982                 3,165                  

Silkbank Limited A-2 A- JCR-VIS 5,718                 5,413                  

The Bank of Khyber A-1 A PACRA 2,150                 1,700                  

Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA 3,637                 1,625                  

Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ JCR-VIS 63,445               11,503               

94,548               36,245               

Investments

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 8,118,972          7,696,784          

8,213,520          7,733,029          

(c) Liquidity risk

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2019.

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

6 months or 

less

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing 1,766,260          1,800,000          1,800,000          

658,531             658,531             658,531             

Trade and other payables 77,220,333        77,220,333       77,220,333        

Unclaimed dividend 144,947             144,947             144,947             

Short term borrowings 4,803,735          4,803,735          4,803,735          

Accrued mark-up 20,767,825        20,767,825       20,767,825        

105,361,631     105,395,371     105,395,371     

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availabilityof fundingthroughsponsors' support. Following are
the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:

Rating

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong
financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company.
Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

-------- Rupees -------

Liability against assets
subject to finance lease

(b) Credit risk

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Investments 8,118,972          7,696,784          

Due from related party 17,619,962       17,619,962        

Deposits 26,414,434       26,414,434        

Advances 15,000               51,001               

Other receivables 33,500               33,500               

Bank balances 94,548               36,245               

52,296,416       51,851,926        

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrumentwill cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was as follows:

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (If
available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2018.

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

6 months or 

less
6-12 months 1-2 Year

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing 5,131,086        5,400,000           1,800,000          1,800,000          1,800,000          

658,531           658,531              658,531             -                      -                      

Trade and other payables 70,590,460      70,590,460        70,590,460        -                      -                      

Unclaimed dividend 144,947           144,947              144,947             -                      -                      

Short term borrowings 11,890,030      11,890,030        11,890,030        -                      -                      

Accrued mark-up 20,767,825      20,767,825        20,767,825        -                      -                      

109,182,879    109,451,793      105,851,793     1,800,000          1,800,000          

38.2 Financial instruments by categories

Amortized cost

Rupees
As at 30 June 2019

Assets as per statement of financial position

Investments 8,118,972 

Due from related party 17,619,962 

Deposits 26,414,434 

Advances 15,000               

Other receivables 33,500               

Cash and bank balances 822,625             

53,024,493        

Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term financing 1,766,260          

Liability against assets subject to finance lease 658,531             

Accrued mark-up 20,767,825        

Short term borrowings 4,803,735        

Unclaimed dividend 144,947             

Trade and other payables 77,220,333        

105,361,631        

Loans and 

receivables

Held to 

maturity
Total

As at 30 June 2018

Assets as per statement of financial position

Investments -                      7,696,784          7,696,784          

Due from related party 17,619,962        -                      17,619,962        

Deposits 26,414,434        -                      26,414,434        

Advances 51,001               -                      51,001               

Other receivables 33,500               -                      33,500               

Cash and bank balances 51,109               -                      51,109               

44,170,006        7,696,784          51,866,790        

Rupees
Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term financing 5,131,086          

Liability against assets subject to finance lease 658,531             

Accrued mark-up 20,767,825        

Short term borrowings 11,890,030        

Unclaimed dividend 144,947             

Trade and other payables 70,590,460        

109,182,879        

Financial liabilities at amortized 

cost

--------- Rupees --------

----------- Rupees -----------

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark up rates

effective as at 30 June. The rate of interest / mark up has been disclosed in Note 5 to these financial statements.

 ------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------

Liability against assets

subject to finance lease

Financial liabilities at amortized 

cost
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38.3 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

38.4 Capital risk management

39 RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Fair value hierarchy

40 RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land                           -         518,451,661                          -         518,451,661 

Buildings on freehold land                           -           25,227,412                          -           25,227,412 

Non factory buildings                           -             8,572,064                          -             8,572,064 

Plant and machinery                           -             4,124,594                          -             4,124,594 

Electric Installations                           -             3,866,800                          -             3,866,800 

Factory equipment                           -                 505,004                          -                 505,004 

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment                           -                 311,199                          -                 311,199 

Vehicles                           -             1,791,509                          -             1,791,509 

Plant and machinery - leased                           -             1,353,655                          -             1,353,655 

                          -         564,203,898                          -         564,203,898 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land                           -         518,451,661                          -         518,451,661 

Buildings on freehold land                           -           28,030,458                          -           28,030,458 

Non factory buildings                           -             9,023,225                          -             9,023,225 

Plant and machinery                           -           11,348,056                          -           11,348,056 

Electric Installations                           -             4,296,445                          -             4,296,445 

Factory equipment                           -                 561,116                          -                 561,116 

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment                           -                 345,777                          -                 345,777 

Vehicles                           -             1,170,482                          -             1,170,482 

Plant and machinery - leased                           -             1,424,900                          -             1,424,900 

                          -         574,652,120                          -         574,652,120 

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are not measured at fair value if the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of

fair value. Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as

their fair value. For the majority of the non-currentreceivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their carrying amounts.

Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instrumentsthat are recognized and measured at fair

value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company

classify its financial instrumentsinto the followingthree levels.However, as at the reporting date, the Company has no such type of financial

instruments which are required to be grouped into these levels. These levels are explained as under:

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the

case for unlisted equity securities.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instrumentstraded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-

sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held

by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is

determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific

estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsetting as there are no enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

At 30 June 2018

The Companys policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

The judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are recognized and measured at fair

value in the financial statements.To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,the Company has

classified its non-financial assets into the following three levels.

At 30 June 2019

Therewere no transfersbetween levels1 and 2 for recurring fair valuemeasurementsduring the year. Further, there was no transfer in

and out of level 3 measurements.
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(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values

Valuation processes

41 DISCLOSURES BY COMPANY LISTED ON ISLAMIC INDEX

2019 2018

NOTE

Loans / advances obtained as per Islamic mode:

Loans -                      -                      

Advances 9 6,751,359          6,222,034          

Shariah complaint bank deposits / bank balances:

Bank balances 25 63,445               12,032               

Profit earned from shariah complaint bank deposits / bank balances: -                      -                      

Revenue earned from shariah complaint business:

Sale of scrap 29 -                      1,400,000          

Rental income 29 24,044,003       18,134,998        

Profit earned or interest paid on any conventional loan / advance:

Profit earned on deposits with banks 29 730                     320                     

Relationship with shariah compliant banks:

Name Relationship at reporting date

Meezan Bank Limited  Bank balance 

Bank Alfalah Limited  Bank balance 

42 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

43 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Benefits due but not paid 7,481,707          

44 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

Rupees

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 05 October 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company obtains independent valuations for its property, plant and equipment after regular intervals. The management updates the

assessment of the fair value of each property, taking into account the most recent independent valuations.The management determine a

property's value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair value of land is current prices in an active

market for similar lands. The best evidence of fair value of buildings is to calculate fair depreciated market value by applying an

appropriate annualrate of depreciation on the new construction/ replacementvalueof the same building. The best evidence of fair valueof

plant and machinery and electric installations is to calculate fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of

depreciation on the replacement value / new purchase of the same plant and machinery and electric installation.

Rupees

Trade and other payables

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the Companys property, plant and

equipment after regular intervals.As at 02 May 2018, the fair values of the plant and machinery,electric installationsand factoryequipment

have been determined by Danish Enterprises and Construction, while fair values of the rest of the property, plant and equipment were

determined by Danish Enterprises and Construction on 02 June 2016.

Description

Changes in fair values are analyzedat each reporting date during the annualvaluationdiscussion between the Chief Financial Officer and

the valuers. As part of this discussion the team presents a report that explains the reason for the fair value movements.

No significant reclassification / rearrangementof corresponding figures have been made in these financial statementsexcept the following

for better presentation:

Description From To

Employees' retirement benefit
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(Rupees in 000)

Period ended

Particulars 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Assets employed

Fixed Assets 564,204          574,652       601,279    679,890       696,188       774,198        

Advance against property -                 -              -           -              -              -               

Due from related party -                 -              -           -              15,302         13,918          

Long term deposits/investments 31,338            30,931         30,549      24,404         24,424         24,440          

Current assets 60,897            59,941         62,146      26,124         16,913         24,887          

Total assets employed 656,439          665,524       693,974    730,418       752,827       837,443        

Financed by:

Shareholder's equity (80,917)           (75,583)        (61,826)     (61,485)        25,424         (69,536)         

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 569,239          571,260       575,018    602,662       530,254       571,747        

488,322          495,677       513,192    541,177       555,678       502,211        

Long Term Financing -                 1,766           5,131       8,137          -              60,708          

Long term liabilities 3,356              3,130           10,063      9,839          9,951          8,970           

Deferred liabilities 5,346              7,241           14,856      22,477         51,845         66,533          

Current liabilities 128,892          127,186       120,209    118,264       135,353       199,023        

Total funds invested 137,594          139,323       150,259    158,717       197,149       335,234        

Profit & (Loss)

Turn over -                 -              -           198             3,574          428,822        

Gross profit/Loss) -                 -              -           (8)                (19,779)        21,878          

Operating profit/(loss) (3,491)             (17,496)        (8,688)      (84,994)        86,496         157,204        

Finance charges (417)                (674)             (893)         (1,948)         (43,798)        (15,331)         

Profit/(loss) before taxation (3,909)             (18,171)        (9,582)      (86,941)        42,697         141,573        

Profit/(loss) after taxation (7,524)             (15,862)        (2,775)      (58,829)        53,478         139,419        

Extra ordinary items -                 -              -           -              -              -               

Net profit/(loss) (7,524)             (15,862)        (2,775)      (58,829)        53,478         139,419        

Actual production (M Kgs) -                 -              -           -              -              1.438           

Converted into 20's (M Kgs) -                 -              -           -              -              3.559           

Earning/(loss) per share (2.47)               (5.20)            (0.91)        (19.27)         17.52          45.67           

Spindles installed Nos. -                 2,064           2,064       11,400         16,200         21,960          

Spindles worked  Nos. -                 -              -           -              -              16,115          

Shifts per day -                 -              -           -              -              3                  

30 June

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
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FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f))

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company D.M. TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30/06/2019

     ------Shareholdings------

4. No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

163 1 100 7,956

77 101 500 22,009

25 501 1,000 20,350

26 1,001 5,000 54,747

11 5,001 10,000 82,739

1 10,001 15,000 11,558

2 15,001 20,000 36,100

3 20,001 25,000 67,037

2 25,001 30,000 54,669

2 30,001 35,000 63,475

2 40,001 45,000 86,500

1 60,001 65,000 63,173

2 75,001 80,000 156,700

1 85,001 90,000 85,950

2 95,001 100,000 197,530

1 100,001 105,000 100,715

1 130,001 135,000 130,124

2 135,001 140,000 275,652

1 150,001 155,000 150,016

1 175,001 180,000 177,648

1 260,001 265,000 263,508

1 265,001 270,000 269,614

1 300,001 305,000 301,767

1 370,001 375,000 372,892

330 3,052,429

2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage

2.3.1  Directors, Chief Executive Officers, 1,356,069 44.4259%

         and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2  Associated Companies, 0 0.0000%

         undertakings and related

         parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3  NIT and ICP 269,876 8.8414%

2.3.4  Banks Development 1,474 0.0483%

         Financial Institutions, Non

         Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5  Insurance Companies 0 0.0000%

2.3.6  Modarabas and Mutual 0 0.0000%

      Funds

2.3.7  Share holders holding 10% 636,400 20.8490%

         or more

2.3.8  General Public

a. Local 1,322,552 43.3279%

b. Foreign 0 0.0000%

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)

Joint Stock Companies 7,430 0.2434%

Pension Funds 30,775 1.0082%

Others 64,253 2.1050%



Catagories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2019

Sr. No. Name
No. of 

Shares Held
Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): -
              

-
             

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

-              -             

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):  

1 MR. HABIB ULLAH 636,400       20.8490

2 RAO KHALID PERVAIZ 177,648       5.8199

3 MR. SHAHID HUSSAIN 100              0.0033

4 MR. AMEER ZEB (CDC) 139,500       4.5701

5 MR. SAMI ULLAH 301,767       9.8861

6 MR. HUSSAIN AHMED OZGEN 654              0.0214

7 MR. SHAHID AZIZ (NIT NOMINEE) -- --

8 MRS. RIFFAT HABIB W/O HABIB ULLAH 100,000       3.2761

Executives: -              -             

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -              -             

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 32,249         1.0565

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 MR. HABIB ULLAH 636,400       20.8490

2 MR. SAMI ULLAH 301,767       9.8861

3 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND (CDC) 269,614       8.8328

4 RAO KHALID PERVAIZ 177,648       5.8199

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their

spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No NAME SALE PURCHASE

Nil -              -             
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PROXY  FORM
 
I/We_____________________________________________________________________________ 

of_______________________________________________________________________________ 

in the district _______________________________ being a member of D.M Textile Mills Limited 

and holder of _______________________________________________________ ordinary shares as 

per share Register Folio No. ____________________________________________________Here 

appoint_______________________________________________________of__________________ 

another member of the company of failing him___________________________________________ 

of_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

another member of the Company as my / our proxy to vote of me / us on my / our behalf at the 

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Saturday, October 28, 2019 at 3:00 p.m or

at any adjournment thereof. 

Signed this _______________________________day of _______________________________2019 

1. Witness: 

Signature    

Name          

Address       
 

2. Witness:          

Signature                  Signature of Member 

Name             Shareholder’s Folio No._____________   

Address           CDC A/c No.______________________ 

    

     

 
 

 

Note: 
 

1. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the company’s Registered Office, 
Westridge, Rawalpindi. not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting 
and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed. 

2. CDC Shareholders are requested to br ing with them their National Identity Cards along 
with the Participants’ ID numbers and their account numbers at the time of attending the 
Annual General Meeting in order to facilitate identification of the respective shareholders. 

NIC No.              

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamps of 
Rs. 5/- 

(Number of Shares) 
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